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TRANSMITTAL LETTER




Suttle &
Slt'Jar%ker

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

June 27, 2007

The Department of Environmental Protection
West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund
Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF)
601 57" Street SE
- Charleston, West Virginia 25304

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC welcomes this opportunity to submit our proposal to serve as
independent Certified Public Accountants to perform the annual audit of the financial statements
of the Department of Environmental Protection West Virginia Water Pollution Control
Revolving Fund Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) for the year ended June 30, 2007.
We are particularly well suited to serve you since we have extensive experience serving the State
of West Virginia and proprietary fund component units of the State including the West Virginia
Workers” Compensation Division, the West Virginia State Rail Authority and previous audits of
~ the CWSRF. '

We understand your interest in competent and efficient audit services. We have assigned as your
client service team a dedicated group of professionals who have effectively audited numerous
State agencies and have developed effective client service plans for various businesses,
governmental entities and not-for-profit organizations. From our experiences with auditing
various units of State government, we know many of the issues that are important to your
management team and what is critical to keeping our clients pleased with our service delivery.

Your engagement member will be Chris Deweese. He has served as engagement member for the
WORKFORCE West Virginia, the five West Virginia Colleges and Universities, the West
Virginia State Rail Authority, and previous audits of the CWSRF.

The CWSRF will be a highly valued client and will benefit from many aspects of our program.
We believe it is our professional understanding of West Virginia State government and the
CWSREF needs, the client service team that we have assembled to serve you and the cost effective
total client service plan we have developed that distinguishes Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC from the
competition. :

The Virginia Center - 1411 Virginia Street, East - Suite 100 - Charleston, WV 25301
Phone (304)—343-4126 or 1-(800)-788-3844 - Fax (304)-343-8008
Towne Square + 201 Third Street - PO Box 149 . Parkersburg, WV 26102
Phone (304)-485-6584 « Fax (304)-485-0971

~ www.suttlecpas.com - E-mail: cpa@suttlecpas.com .
A Professional Limited Liability Company
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We will serve the CWSRF in a dedicated manner and you will be a top priority of our office. We
would appreciate the opportunity to meet personally with you to further discuss this written
proposal. We possess all of the technical and professional qualifications to serve you in the most
effective manner. Please feel free to contact Chris Deweese or Horace Emery in respect to any

questions you may have concerning this proposal. This proposal is a firm and irrevocable offer
for ninety (90) days.

Very truly yours, |

Loty V Sdlnten. P
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SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

We understand that the CWSRF requires an audit of its financial statements including
supplemental schedules required by the West Virginia Department of Administration, Financial
and Reporting Section (FARS) and the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), if
applicable.

We will conduct the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement whether caused by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of
assets. Accordingly, a material misstatement, whether caused by error, fraudulent financial
reporting, or misappropriation of assets, may remain undetected. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. As a
result, an audit is not designed to detect errors or fraud that are immaterial to the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit will provide a reasonable basis for our report.

'The CWSRF’s financial réport will include the following:
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial Statements

In addition to our report on the CWSRF’s financial statements, we will also issue the following
reports or types of reports:

Report on compliance with requirements applicable to the Capitalization Grants for
Clean Water State Revolving Fund and on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the program-specific audit option and OMB Circular A-133

‘An audit of financial statements also includes obtaining an understanding of internal control
sufficient to plan the audit and to determine the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures to
be performed. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, we will communicate to management
and the audit committee any significant deficiencies or matenal weaknesses that become known
to us during the course of the audit.



If circumstances arise relating to the conditions of your records, the availability of sufficient,
competent evidential matter, or indications of a significant risk of material misstatement of the
financial statements because of error, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets,
or noncompliance which in our professional judgment prevent us from completing the audit or
forming an opinion, we retain the unilateral right to take any course of action permitted by
professional standards, including declining to express an oplmon or issue a report, or withdrawal
from the engagement.

As you know, management is responsible for 1) the preparation of CWSRF's financial
staternents, 2) establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
safeguarding assets and internal control over compliance, - including monitoring ongoing
activities, and for informing us of all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of such
controls of which it has knowledge, 3) properly recording transactions in the records, 4)
identifying and ensuring that CWSRF complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its
activities, and for informing us about all known material violations of such laws or regulations,
5) the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for
informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management,
employees who have significant roles in internal control and others where the fraud could have a
material effect on the financial statements, 6) informing us of its knowledge of any allegations of
fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received in communications from employees,
regulators, or others, 7) making all financial records and related information available to us, and
8) for adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements. At the conclusion of
our audit, we will request certain written representations from management about the financial
statements and matters related thereto. We will also require that management affirm to us that the
effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and
pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to
the opinion units of the financial statements. :

The audit committee or its equivalent is responsible for informing us of its views about the risks
of fraud within the entity, and its knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity.
We will also determine that certain matters related to the conduct of the audit are communicated
to the audit committee or its equivalent including 1) fraud involving senior management and
fraud (whether caused by senior management or other employees) that causes a material »
misstatement of the financial statements, 2) illegal acts that come to our attention (unless they are
clearly inconsequential), 3) disagreements with management and other serious difficulties
encountered in performing the audit, and 4) various matters related to the entity's accounting
policies and financial statements

CWSRF hereby indemnifies Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC and its partners, principals, and
employees and holds them harmless from all claims, Labilities, losses, and costs arising in
circumstances where there has been a knowing misrepresentation by a member of CWSRF's
management, regardless of whether such person was acting in CWSRF's interest. This
indemnification will survive termination of this letter.
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The two overarching principles of the independence standards of the Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States provide that management is
responsible for the substantive outcomes of the works, and therefore, has a responsibility and is
able to make any informed judgment on the results of the services described above. Accordingly,
the CWSRF agrees to the following:

The CWSRF will be accountable and responsible for overseeing the financial statement
preparation and will approve all proposed adjustments.

- The CWSRF will establish and monitor the performance of the prepafation of financial
statements and approval of the adjustments to ensure that they meet management's
objectives. :

The CWSRF will make any decisions that involve management functions related to the
preparation of the financial statements and approval of the adjustments and accepts full
responsibility for such decisions.

The CWSRF will evaluate the adequacy of services performed and any findings that result.

During the course of our engagement, we may accumulate records containing data which should
be reflected in your books and records. You will determine that all such data, if necessary, will be
so reflected. Accordingly, you will not expect us to maintain copies of such records in our
possession.

From time to time and depending upon the circumstances, we may use third-party service
providers to assist us in providing professional services to you. In such circumstances, it may be
necessary for us to disclose confidential client information to them. We enter into confidentiality
agreements with all third-party service providers and we are satisfied that they have appropriate
procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential mformatlon to
others.

The assistance to be supplied by organization personnel, including the preparation of schedules
and analyses of accounts, will be discussed and coordinated with management. The timely and
accurate completion of this work is an essential condition to our completion of the audit and
issuance of our audit report.

Our professional standards require that we perform certain additional procedures, on current and
previous years engagements, whenever a partner or professional employee leaves the firm and is
subsequently employed by or associated with a client. Accordingly, CWSRF agrees it will
compensate Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC for any additional costs incurred as a result of the
employment of a partner or professional employee of Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC.
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In the event we are requested or authorized by CWSRF or are required by government regulation,
subpoena, or other legal process to produce our documents or our personnel as witnesses with
respect to our engagements for CWSRF, CWSRF will, so long as we are not a party to the
proceeding in which the information is sought, reimburse us for our professional time and
expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our counsel, incurred in respondmg to such
requests.

Professional standards and our Firm policies require that we perform certain additional
procedures whenever our reports are included, or we are named as accountants, auditors, or
"experts" in a document used in a public offering of debt securities. Our report on the financial
statements is not to be included in an official statement or other document involved with the sale
of debt instruments without our prior consent. Additionally, if you intend to publish or otherwise
reproduce the financial statements and/or make reference to us or our audit, you agree to provide
us with printer's proofs or master for our review and consent before reproduction and/or release
occurs. You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our consent
before it is distributed or released. Our fees for any additional services that may be required
under our quality assurance system as a result of the above will be established with you at the
time such services are determined to be necessary. In the event our auditor/client relationship has
been terminated when the Company seeks such consent, we will be under no obligation to grant
such consent or approval.

Any claim arising out of services rendered pursuant to this agreement shall be resolved in
accordance with the laws of West Virginia. It is agreed by CWSRF and Suttle & Stalnaker,
PLLC or any successors in interest that no claim arising out of services rendered pursuant to this
agreement by or on behalf of CWSRF shall be asserted more than two years after the date of the
last audit report issued by Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC.

Our acceptance of this engagement is subject to our satisfactorily completing communication
with and review of the working papers of your previous auditors (accountants). We will notify
you promptly if we become aware of anything during that communication or review which
results in our not being able to continue this engagement.

This proposal constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of agreement between Suttle &
Stalnaker, PLLC and the CWSRF, superseding all proposals oral or written and all other
communication, with respect to the terms of the engagement between the parties.

In addition, we will respond to reasonable inquiries by the CWSRF or its successor auditors and
allow its successor auditors to review working papers relating to the matters of contmumg
account significance.
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Audit Workpapers

The workpapers for this engagement are the property of Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC and constitute
confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain workpapers available to
other agencies pursuant to authority given to them by law or regulation. If requested, access to
such workpapers will be provided under the supervision of Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC personnel.
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide photocopies of selected workpapers to such
agencies, which may intend, or decide, to distribute the photocopies or information contained
therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

All working papers and reports will be retained, for a minimum of five (5) years, unless the firm
is notified in writing by the CWSRF of the need to extend the retention period. We will make
working papers available, upon reasonable request, to the CWSRF, or Department of
Administration, including the Financial Accounting and Reporting Section under the supervision
of Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC personnel.

In addition, we will respond to reasonable inquiries by the CWSRF or its successor auditors and
allow its successor auditors to review working papers relating to the matters of continuing
account significance.

Reporting

Following the completion of the audit of the fiscal year’s financial statements, we will issue our
report on the fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. In addition, we will provide an “in-relation-to report on the supplemental
schedules to be submitted to the West Virginia Department of Administration, Financial and
Reporting Section based on the auditing procedures applied during the audit of the general
purpose financial statements.

We will also communicate in a letter to management any reportable conditions, irregularities, and
illegal acts found during the audit. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention
that involve significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control structure
that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the organization’s ability to record, process,
summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the
financial statements. We will also immediately provide a written report of irregularities and
illegal acts of which we become aware to the Acting State Comptroller and the Financial and
Reporting Section of the Department of Administration.
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We will also report at a minimum, to the CWSRF Finance Committee the following:

1.

WP NAL WD

The auditor’s responsibility under auditing standards generally accepted in the Umted
States of America
Significant accounting policies

~ Management judgments and accounting estimates

Significant audit adjustments

Other information in documents containing audited financial statements
Disagreements with management

Management consultation with other accountants

Major issues discussed with management prior to retention

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We will be available to meet in person with the CWSRF Finance Committee as well as the full
Commission to present and discuss the results of our audit.

Other Considerations

We understand that the financial statements of the CWSRF are to be included as a component
unit of the financial statements of the State of West Virginia. We will also help prepare the
reconciliation forms required by the West Virginia Department of Administration, Financial and
Reporting Section.



SUTTLE & STALNAKER, PLLC
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SUTTLE & STALNAKER, PLLC

- INDEPENDENCE AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

All professional personnel must be familiar with and adhere to the independence rules,
regulations, interpretations, and rulings of the AICPA, the State of West Virginia Board of
Accountancy, the West Virginia Society of CPAs, the United States General Accounting Office,
State statutes, and regulatory agencies under which we practice. In this regard, any transaction,

event, or circumstance that would impair the Firm’s independence on compilation, review, audit,

forecast, projection, or attestation engagements is prohlblted

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC is independent of the CWSRF, the State of West Virginia, and any
other component units of the State of West Virginia as defined by auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, United States General Accounting Office.

LICENSE TO PRACTICE IN WEST VIRGINIA

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC and all key professional staff are properly licensed to practice in West
Virginia. In addition, most of the Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC personnel a531gned to this
engagement have already passed the CWSRF security checks.

FIRM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC, Certified Public Accountants, has offices located at 1411 Virginia
Street East, The Virginia Center, Suite 100, Charleston, West Virginia 25301 and at Towne
Square, PO Box 149, Parkersburg, West Virginia 26102. The Firm currently consists of the
following personnel: members/partners - 11, managers, seniors and staff accountants - 29,
support staff - 9. Currently there are approximately 12 individuals in our governmental audit
staff. The work performed will be coordinated by our Charleston office. We anticipate 3 to 4 full-
time personnel assigned to the engagement. Various members and employees of the Firm are
members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the West Virginia Society of
Certified Public Accountants, Government Finance Ofﬁcers Association, and other professional
organizations.

We are experienced in and perform a full range of activities. Our professionals are organized
according to their functional discipline: accounting and auditing, tax and tax consulting, and
management consulting. We consider ourselves business advisors who not only solve problems
but also prevent them.
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PKF NORTH AMERICAN NETWORK

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC is a member of PKF North American Network, (PKF). PKF is a
national and international association of independent certified public accounting firms, which
provides its members with continuing professional educatlon quahty control, technical support
and marketing services.

Membership in PKF allows us to significantly broaden our Firm’s representation and provides the
technical support that is so critical in our ever-changing and expanding profession. With over 200
member firms throughout the United States, Canada, Mexico, Puerto Rico, the United Kingdom,
Europe and the Far East, PKF offers a network of experience and expertise covering a wide range of
industries and client services on a regional, national and international basis. '

PKF North American Network (PKF) is an association of CPA firms dedicated to high standards
of practice, and admission is by invitation only. Member firms must comply with a number of
rigorous membership requirements, including a periodic “peer review” in which other CPAs
inspect a sample of the Firm’s working papers and evaluate its quality controls. The Association
provides a national and international network from which the firms can draw upon for additional
experience, consultation and personnel. PKF strengthens the practices of its member firms in a
variety of ways: :

e increased representation throughout the world

o access to specialized knowledge and expertise throughout the PKF North American
Network of firms

e superior professional education

o marketing and practice development support

e alibrary of high-quality technical materials

e a network of international public accounting firms, through affiliation with PKF
International, to meet their international needs

PKF North American Network and PKF International 4s of October 27, 2006

PKT North American Network PKF International Combined
Number of Firms 90 127 217
Gross Fees (in millions, U.S.) $631 $750 $1,381
Number of Partners 822 851 1,673
Number of Staff 4,816 8,360 13,176

Number of Countries 3 117 120
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PKF North Amerlcan Network Membership as of October 27, 2006

Number of Firms with One Office: 50 -

Number of Firms with Muitiple Offices: 40

Largest Firm Revenue: ‘ $26,828,000
Smallest Firm Revenue: $653,900
Average Firm Revenue: $7,014,000
Locations: ‘ 158

Number of States: 38

Number of Canadian Provinces: 6

Number of Mexican Provinces: . 27

PKF North American Network is an association of independently owned accounting and
consulting firms with offices throughout the world. Organized around regional networks, the
purpose of the association is to improve the proﬁtablhty of its member firms while helping them
maintain local ownership.

OUR GOVERNMENT AND NONPROFIT PRACTICE

Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC has specialized in governmental and nonprofit agency auditing and
accounting for over 30 years. This segment currently makes up the largest industry concentration
of our audit practice, with our professional staff spending well over 12,000 hours per year on
audits of governmental and nonprofit entities and programs. Every member of our audit staff has
both training and experience in governmental and nonprofit accounting and auditing.

The State of West Virginia and its departments, divisions, and component units are the
ccornerstone of our government practice. Through a joint venture, we participate in the audit of
the State of West Virginia’s financial statements, and perform extensive work related to the
requirements of the Single Audit Act and Office of Management and Budget’s Circular A-133.

As part of the joint venture, we were also heavily involved in special work for the Board of
Investments with regard to the consolidated investment fund. In additional, Suttle & Stalnaker,
PLLC personnel provided assistance with the State’s GAAP conversion project and initial
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Our Firm has served numerous other governmentally
and nonprofit funded clients and similar entities requiring audits in accordance with. Government
Auditing Standards, developing a strong reputation for providing quality services in the West
Virginia market. This preeminence in governmental and nonprofit services is not the result of
casual experience acquired through an on-going accounting practice. Rather, it results from the
commitment of our Firm to the highest standards of service in the governmental and nonprofit
sector.
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RELATED EXPERIENCE

We are particularly well suited to serve you since we have extensive experience serving the State

of West Virginia and proprietary fund component units of the State including The West Virginia

Lottery, and The West Virginia Workers” Compensation Division the West Virginia State Rail

Authority and previous audits of the CWSRF. In conjunction with the West Virginia Lottery

engagement, we assisted the Lottery with its submissions of its Certificate of Achievement for

Excellence in Financial Reporting award winning Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports to -
the Government Finance Officers Association. In addition we assisted the Lottery with its

preparation of the reconciliation forms submitted to the West Virginia Department of
Administration, Financial and Reportlng Section for the preparation of the State’s CAFR.

EXTERNAL REVIEWS OF FIRM WORK

Our Firm’s most recent peer review of our system of quality control performed by an
independent CPA Firm in accordance with standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants was completed in 2005, and we received an unqualified opinion
with no letter of comments. In accordance with peer review standards, the peer review included a
review of selected specific governmental engagements. A copy of that report is included in this
proposal.

DESK AND FIELD REVIEWS

Engagements performed by Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC have been subjected to several federal desk
and field reviews over the past three years. No significant issues were raised as a result of any of
these reviews. :

LITIGATION AND LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Firm has never had any litigation against it, and there is no pending litigation involving the
Firm with any state regulatory bodies or professional organizations. The firm currently has two
million dollars of liability insurance. The firm evaluates its insurance levels at least annually and
obtains the level of coverage determined to be appropriate.
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ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING

We have a strong reputation as auditors and business consultants to small and middle market
companies, assisting in the analysis of business opportunities and threats, operations
improvement, profit management, and design and installation of computer accounting and
statistical systems. We are especially well known and respected for our experience and expertise
in governmental and nonprofit entities, programs and activities, including Federal financial
assistance programs, and cost allocation plans.

‘Our professionals are skilled in the unique financial reporting, accounting and auditing, and tax
concerns of our clients as well as assisting them in such specialized projects as business
financing, and operational analysis and improvement.

QUALITY CONTROL

The Firm is a member in good standing of the PKF International and the Private Companies
Practice Section of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and as such is required
to provide a minimum of 40 hours of continuing professional education for each professional on
staff, have a complete quality control system in place which encompasses all five of the quality
control elements established by the AICPA, and have a peer review at least every three years.
The following is a brief summary of our policies as they relate to each quality control element.

Independence, Integrity and Objectivity - All personnel must maintain independence in all
required circumstances, perform all professional responsibilities with integrity, and maintain
objectivity in discharging professional responsibilities. All professional personnel must be
familiar with and adhere to the independence rules, regulations, interpretations, and rulings of the
AICPA, the State of West Virginia Board of Accountancy, the West Virginia Society of CPAs,
the United States General Accounting Office, State statutes, and regulatory agencies under which
we practice. In this regard, any transaction, event, or circumstance that would impair the Firm’s
independence on compilation, review, audit, forecast, projection, or attestation engagements is
prohibited.

- Personnel Management - Personnel Management encompasses hiring, assigning personnel to
-engagements, professional development, and advancement activities. Accordingly, policies and
procedures have been established to provide the firm with reasonable assurance that-

o Those hired possess the appropriate characteristics to enable them to perform competently.
Professional staff must normally have an accounting degree and a grade poirt average of at
least 3.0 on a 4.0 scale.

o Work is assigned to personnel having the degree of technical training and proficiency
required in the circumstances.
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e Personnel participate in general and industry-specific continuing professional education and
other professional development activities that enable them to fulfill responsibilities assigned.
All professional personnel must comply with the continuing professional education
requirements of the AICPA, the West Virginia State Board of Accountancy, and the U.S.
General Accounting Office. Specifically, all professionals must obtain a minimum of 40
hours of continuing professional education per year. For persons involved in governmental

. auditing, at least 24 hours in any two-year period must be directly related to governmental

accounting and auditing. All professional staff must maintain an adequate awareness and

“understanding of current developments in technical literature, and all professional staff must
assist in the training and development of staff members under their supervision.

e Personnel selected for advancement must have the qualifications necessary for fulfillment of “
the responsibilities they will be call on to assume. These determinations are made based on.
periodic, objective evaluations of individual performances.

Engagement Performance - Engagement Performance encompasses all phases of the design and
execution of the engagement. Our policies and procedures cover planning, performing,
supervising, reviewing, documenting, and communicating the results of each engagement. Our
Firm recognizes the need for a constant exchange of ideas and opinions about technical issues on
all professional engagements, and it is our policy that all professional personnel seek consultation
whenever they are uncertain about the answer to a technical question, the application of a
professional procedure or standard, the application of a rule, regulation or procedure of a tax or
other regulating agency, or the application of a Firm policy.

Acceptance and Continuance of Clients and Engagements - It is the policy of our Firm that on all
compilation, review, audit, forecast, projection, and attestation engagements, the acceptability of
the client be evaluated to assess the Firm’s abilities to perform the services and the risks
associated with providing the services before the Firm agrees to provide professional services.

Monitoring - It is the poliéy of our Firm that our quality control system be monitored on an
ongoing basis to determine whether the Firm complies with its stated quality control policies and
procedures. : :

- The specific procedures utilized to ensure compliance with the above policies are enumerated in
our formal Quality Control Document, which is available for your inspection upon request.

A review of the Firm’s system-of quality control was performed in 2005, in accordance with the

AICPA’s peer review program. An unqualified opinion with no letter of comments was received
as a result of this review. A copy of that report is on the following pages.
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To the Members
Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC

- Wehavereviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Suttle
& Stalnaker, PLLC (the firm) in effect for the year ended May 31, 2005. A system of quality control
encompasses the firm’s organizational structure, the policies adopted and procedures established to provxde
it with reasonable assurance of conforming with professional standards. The elements of quality control are
“described in the Statement on Quality Control Standards issued by the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA). The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and
complying with it to provide the firm reasonable assurance of conforming with professional standards in all
material respects. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quahty control
and the firm’s compliance with the system of quality control based on our review.

Our review was conducted in accordance with standards established by the Peer Review Board of
the AICPA. During our review, we read required representations from the firm, interviewed firm personnel
and obtained an understanding of the nature of the firm’s accounting and auditing practice, and the design
of the firm’s system of quality control sufficient to assess the risks implicit in its practice. Based on our
assessments, we selected engagements and administrative files to test for conformity with professional
standards and compliance with the firm’s system of quality control. The engagements selected represented
a reasonable cross-section of the firm’s accounting and auditing practice with emphasis on higher-risk
engagements.  The engagements selected included, among others, audits of Employee Benefit Plans and
engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards. Prior to concluding the review, we
reassessed the adequacy of the scope of the peer review procedures and met with firm management to
discuss the results of our review. We believe that the procedures we performed provide a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

In performing our review, we obtained an understanding of the system of quality control for the
firm’s accounting and auditing practice. In addition, we tested compliance with the firm’s quality control
policies and procedures to the extent we considered appropriate. These tests covered the application of the
firm’s policies and procedures on selected engagements. Our review was based on selected tests; therefore
it would not necessarily disclose all weaknesses in the system of quality contro] or all instances of lack of
compliance with it. There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of quality control and
therefore noncompliance with the system of quality control may occur and not be detected. Projection of -
any evaluation of a system of quality control of future periods is subject to the risk that the systern of quality
control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or because the degree of comphance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC
Page Two

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Suttle &
Stalnaker PLLC in effect for the year ended May 31, 2005, has been designed to meet the requirements of
the quality control standards for an accounting and auditing practice established by the AICPA and was
complied with during the year then ended to provide the firm w1th reasonable assurance of conforming with

professional standards. _
‘ ,
—EN‘&,W* @’f o / SC

Riney, Hancock & Co., PSC
Owensboro, Kentucky 42303
November 7, 2005

TACL\Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC\2005\peer review ltr.doc
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ENGAGEMENT TEAM QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

We firmly believe that the true quality of service can be linked directly to competent people
dedicated to excellence. The audit professionals selected to serve the Commission all have
extensive governmental experience and prior State of West Virginia proprietary fund experience.
We will provide for an organizational structure that ensures ongoing and knowledgeable
supervision by management already familiar with numerous Commission issues to ensure
maximum efficiency.

The following individuals will have responsibility to ensure that our services to the Commission

meet ‘your requirements. Their resumes are included on the following pages. Continuing
education records will be made available if awarded this contract.

Horace Emery, CPA

Horace Emery will serve as Independent Member. He will be responsible for providing technical
assistance and consulting on the engagement as needed. He will also perform the Independent
Member review of the deliverables.

Chris Deweese, CPA

Chris Deweese, Member, has served as the engagement member and will be responsible for
direct supervision of the engagement, including ensuring that all professional standard are met.
He will be responsible for planning and immediate supervision of senior and staff accountants, as
well as the detail review of workpapers and financial statement preparation.

Other

Additional staff will be assigned as necessary. Any professional staff will have at least a college
degree from an accredited four-year college and be a true employee. Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC
continually strives to hire the best personnel available to serve our clients. We are committed to
this effort in order to provide our clients with the high quality service they deserve.
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HORACE W. EMERY, CPA ’
Member .

Firm Responsibilities

Horace Emery is an audit partner whose responsibilities include providing technical assistance on
all accounting and audit engagements, serving on the firm administration committee, and
managing the Firm’s continuing professional education program.

Experience

He has had over 28 years of diversified experience in public accounting with the firms of Suttle
& Stalnaker, PLLC and Peat, Marwick, Main & Co. His extensive experience includes audits of
nonprofit, governmental and healthcare entities as well as audits of retail wholesale, and
manufacturing companies; reviews of accounting systemS' and reviews of internal controls.

He has served as the engagement partner or independent partner during the past several years for
numerous clients, including the following:

- West Virginia Bureau of Employment Programs

- West Virginia Workers’ Compensation Division

- West Virginia PEIA - Financial and Compliance Audit

- West Virginia PEIA - Plan Document Compliance Review

- West Virginia Division of Highways

- West Virginia Department of Transportation

- West Virginia Lottery

- Minnesota Lottery '

- West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund - Enterprise Fund
- State of West Virginia - Single Audit

- West Virginia Department of Education - Agreed-upon Procedures
- State of West Virginia - Internal control project for the State Treasurer’s Office
- Boone County Board of Education - Single Audit

- Putnam County Board of Education - Single Audit

- Kanawha County Board of Education - Single Audit

- Pendleton County Board of Education - Single Audit

- Tyler County Board of Education - Single Audit

- Gilmer County Board of Education - Single Audit

- Doddridge County Board of Education - Single Audit

- Roane County Board of Education - Single Audit

- BCKP Regional Intergovernmental Council
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HORACE W. EMERY (Continued)

Educatioh

Horace graduated from West Virginia University with a master’s of business administration
degree with an emphasis in accounting, and from Oberlin College with a Bachelor of Arts
degree. He is a certified public accountant having received certificate number 1144 from the
State of West Virginia.

Professional Activities

He is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, West Virginia Society
of Certified Public Accountants, and the Government Finance Officers Association. He currently
serves on the Peer Review Committee of the West Virginia Society of Certified Public
Accountants. He has planned local office professional development training programs for several
years and has instructed several technical seminars. Horace also currently serves or has served as
board member for the Charleston Light Opera Guild, Fund for the Arts, and The Clay Center for
the Arts and Sciences - West Virginia.



. 27
CHRIS DEWEESE, CPA

Member

Firm Responsibilities

Chris is a member, and is responsible for helping develop and carryout the engagement plans for
specific clients. These responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the development of the
audit plan and audit program, communication with client during the course of the fieldwork,
direct supervision of the audit staff and completion of the final audit report.

Experience

Chris has over 11 years of experienée in public accounting during which time he has specialized
in serving governmental entities. He has served as an auditor for the following clients:

- West Virginia Bureau of Employment Programs

- Bluefield State College

- Concord University

- Southern West Virginia Commumty & Technical College

- West Virginia School of Osteopathic Medicine

- New River Community & Technical College

- BCKP, Regional Intergovernmental Council

- West Virginia Department of Transportation

- West Virginia Division of Highways

- West Virginia Public Employees’ Insurance Agency

- Sixteen Public Defender Corporation, Authority

- State of West Virginia, Single Audit, including the followmg
West Virginia Bureau of Employment Programs
West Virginia Department of Education
West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection
West Virginia Department of Health and Human Resources
West Virginia Development Office
West Virginia Division of Rehabilitative Services
West Virginia University
Marshall University

- West Virginia Department of Health and Human Resources, Office of Audits, Research,

and Analysis - Agreed Upon Procedures
- Thirteen County Boards of Education - Single Audits
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CHRIS DEWEESE, (Continued)

Education

Chris graduated with a Bachelor’s degree with a major in accounting from the University of
Charleston. He is a certified public accountant having received certificate number 3961 from the
State of West Virginia.

Professional Activities

Chris is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, West Virginia
Society of Certified Public Accountants, the Government Finance Officers Association, the
Association of School Business Officials, and the Charleston Chapter of the West Virginia
Society of Certified Public Accountants. He currently serves on the Government Interest
Committee of the West Virginia Society of Certified Public Accountants and is the Past President
of the Board of Directors of the Charleston Chapter of the West Virginia Society of Certified
Public Accountants. In addition, he currently serves on the Accounting Procedures Committee of
the Association of School Business Officials, the Special Review Committee of the Government
Finance Officers Association for the GFOA Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting and
is an associate member of the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners. Chris was the 2004
recipient of the Young CPA of the Year Award from the West Virginia Society of Certlﬁed
Public Accountants.
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PROFESSIONAL FEES

We generally base our fees on the time required at our regular rates for the services and personnel
assigned plus out-of-pocket costs and relevant computer charges. Our charges also include other
appropriate factors, including the difficulty of the assignment, the degree of skill required, time
limitations imposed on us by others, the experience and ability of the personnel assigned, and the
value of the services to the client. We attempt to minimize our fees consistent with quality work.
The extent to which we can do this depends on your personnel offering us clerical and other
assistance to prepare schedules, perform analyses, and provide source documents.

We will attempt to minimize our fees consistent with quality work. The extent to which we can
do this will depend on your personnel offering us clerical and other assistance to prepare
schedules, perform analyses, and provide source documents. If we encounter circumstances not
contemplated in preparing this estimate or management determines that additional procedures
and/or testwork is needed, we will discuss them with you and arrive at a new fee arrangement.

We will be available throughout the year for additional consultation services on as needed basis
and will bill for these services separately outside of this engagement. For consulting engagements
requiring significant time, we will provide an estimate of the cost of the engagement for your
approval prior to proceeding with the engagement. Our current hourly rates for these additional
services are as follows:

If we encounter circumstances not contemplated in preparing this estimate, we will discuss them
with you and arrive at a new fee arrangement. Fees for special projects, accounting assistance,
significant assistance regarding new accounting and reporting requirements, consulting services,
etc. will be charged separately. Assuming adequate records, internal controls, and assistance of
your personnel, we estimate that our fees exclusive of out-of-pocket expenses are as follows:

Total Hours Rate Fee
Partners/Members 15. $245 $ 3,675
Managers 15 $155 2,325
Supervisory Staff 40 $100 4,000
Audit Seniors ' 70 $95 6,650
Staff Accountants 75 $90 6.750

$ 23400

This contract may be renewed for future years beyond June 30, 2007, upon mutual consent of
both parties.
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State of West Virginia
Department of Administration
Purchasing Division

2019 Washington Strest East
Post Office Box 50130
Charleston, WV 25305-0130

%709063333
SUTTLE & STALNAKER PLLC
THE VIRGINIA CENTER SUITE
1611 VIRGINIA STREET EAST
CHARLESTON WV 25301

306~343-6126

Request for =

Quotation

100

CHUCK BOWMAN

306-558-21587

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTIUN
DEPARTMENT OF

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION

601 57TH STREET SE

CHARLESTON, Wv

25304 304-926-0499

06/d6/2007

BID OPENING DATE: D06/21/2007
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12,
13,

14.

GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS
'REQUEST FOR QUOTATION (RFQ) AND REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

Awards will be made in the best interest of the State of West Virginia.
The State may accept or reject in part, or in whole, any bid.
All quotations are governed by the West Virginia Code and the Legislative.ﬁu‘le,s of the Purchasing Division.

Prior to any award, the apparent successful vendor must be properly registered with the Purchasing Division and have
paid the requirgd $125.00 registration fee. v

All services periormed or goods delivered under State Purchase Orders/Contracts are to be continued for the term
of the Purchase Order/Contract, contingent upon funds being appropriated by the Legislature or otherwise being
made available. In the event funds are not appropriated or otherwise available for these services or goods, this
Purchase Order/Contract becomes void and of no effect after June 30.

Payrment may only be made after the delivery and acceptance of goods or services.

Interest may be paid for late payment in accordance with the West Virginia Code.

Vendor preference will be granted upon written request in accordance with the West Virginiai Code.

The State of Wesf Virginia is exempt from federal and state taxes and will not pay or reimburse such taxes.

Thé Director of Purchasing may cancel any Purchase Order/Contract upon 30 days written notice to the seller.

The laws of the State of West Virginia and the Legislative Rules of the Purchasing Division shall govern all rights
and duties under the Contract, including without limitation the validity of this Purchase Order/Contract.

Any reference to automatic renewal is hereby deleted. The Contract may be renewed only upon mutual written
agreement of the parties. ‘ :

- BANKRUPTCY: In the event the vendor/contractor files for bankruptcy protection, this contract is automatically

null and void, and is terminated without further order.

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum - The West Viginia State Government HIPAA Business Associate
Addendum (BAA), approved by the Attorney General, and available online at the Purchasing Division's web site
(http://www.state.wv.us/admin/purchase/vre/hipaa.htm) is hereby made part of the agreement. Provided that, the
Agency meets the definition of a Covered Entity (45 CFR §160.103) and will be disclosing Protected Health
Information (45 CFR §160.103) to the vendor. ,

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

Use the quotation forms provided by the Purchasing Division.

- SPECIFICATIONS: ltems offered must be in compliance with the specifications. Any deviation from the specifications

must be clearly indicated by the bidder. Alternates offered by the bidder as EQUAL to the specifications must be
clearly defined. A bidder offering an alternate should attach complete specifications and literature to the bid. The
Purchasing Division may waive minor deviations to specifications.

Complete all sections of the quotation form.
Unit prices shall prevail in cases of discrepancy.
All quotations are considered F.O.B. destination unless alternate shipping terms are clearly identified in the quotation,

BID SUBMISSION: All quotations must be delivered by the bidder to the office listed below prior to the date and time
of the bid opening. Failure of the bidder to deliver the quotations on time will result in bid disqualifications.

SIGNED BID TO:

Department of Administration
Purchasing Division

2019 Washington Street East
Post Office Box 50130
Charleston, WV 25305-0130

Rev. 06/21/2006



State of West Virginia
Department of Administration
Purchasing Division

Post Office Box 50130

x709043333 304-363-4
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State of West Virginia
Department of Administration
Purchasing Division

2019 Washington Street East
Post Office Box 50130
Charleston, WV 25305-0130

¥709063333 3064-363-64126
SUTTLE & STALNAKER PLLC '
THE VIRGINIA CENTER SUITE 100

1411 VIRGINIA STREET EAST

CHARLESTON WV 25301

Request for.
Quotation

DEP14100 ' 3

CHUCK BOWMAN

304-8558-21587

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
DEPARTMENT OF

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION

601 57TH STREET SE

CHARLESTON, WV

25304 306-926-0699

06/06/2007
BID OPENING DATE:

01:30PM

AGREEMENTS OR MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS, (INCLUDING ANYv
ELECTRONIC MEDIUM SUCH AS CD-ROM.

REV. 04/11/2001

VENDOR PREFERENCE CERTIFICATE

CERTIFICATION AND| APPLIICATION* IS HEREBY MADE FOR
PREFERENCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH WEST VIRGINIA CODE,
5A-3-37 (DOES NOT| APPLYY TO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS).
A. APPLICATIION IS MADE FOR 2.5% PREFERENCE FOR THE
REASON CHECK[ED:

( ) BIDDER] IS AN INDIVIDUAL RESIDENT| VENDOR AND
HAS RESIDED |CONTINUOUSLY IN WEST VIRGINIA FOR FOUR
(4) YEARS IMMEDIATELY |PRECEDING THE DATE OF THIS
CERTIFICATION; OR

(bg) BIDDER) IS A PARTNERSHIP, ASSOCIATION OR CORPORA-
TION RESIDENT VENDOR AND HAS MAINTAINED ITS HEAD- '
QUARTERS OR |PRINCIPAL [PLACE OF BUSINESS CONTINUOUSLY 1IN
WEST VIRGINIA FOR| FOUR| (4) YEARS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING
THE DATE OF [THIS [CERTIFICATION; OR 80% OF THE OWNERSHIP
INTEREST OF BIDDER IS HELD BY ANOTHER |INDIVIDUAL,
PARTNERSHIP,| ASSOCIATION OR CORPORATION RESIDENT VENDOR
WHO HAS MAINTAINED ITS| HEADQUARTERS OR| PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS [CONTINUOUSLY IN WEST VIRGINIA FOR FOUR (4)
YEARS IMMEDIATELY| PRECEDING THE DATE OF THIS
CERTIFICATION; OR

( ) BIDDER IS A CORPORATION NONRESIDENT VENDOR
WHICH HAS AN AFFILIATE| OR SUBSIDIARY WHICH EMPLOYS

A MINIMUM OF| ONE HUNDRED STATE RESIDENTS AND WHICH _
HAS MAINTAINED ITS'HEAQUARTERS-OR PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

TELEPHONE DATE
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State of West Virginia 'RequeSt for
Department of Administraton  Quotation
Purchasing Division

2019 Washington Street East

Post Office Box 50130 -

Charleston, WV 25305-0130 : CHUCK BOWMAN
306-558-2157

*x7090643333 306-363-6126
SUTTLE & STALNAKER PLLC

THE VIRGINIA CENTER SUITE 100
1411 VIRGINIA STREET EAST.
-CHARLESTON WV 25301

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
DEPARTMENT OF
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION
601 57TH STREET SE
CHARLESTON, WV
25304 304-926-0499

PRINTE

06/06/2007
" BID OPENING DATE: -

D6/21/2007

BUSINESS WITHIN WEST VIIRGINIA CONTINUOUSLY FOR THE
FOUR (4) YEARS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE DATE OF THIS
CERTIFICATION.

B. APPLICATIION IS MADE FOR 2.5% PREFERENCE FOR THE
REASON CHECKED:
C]\) BIDDER| IS Al RESIDENT VENDOR WHO [CERTIFIES THAT,
DURMNG. THE LIFE OF THE| CONTRACT, ON AVERAGE AT LEAST
75% OF THE EMPLOYEES WORKING ON THE PROJECT BEING BID
ARE RESIDENT|S OF WEST VIRGINIA WHO HAVE RESIDED IN
THE STATE CONTINUDUSLY, FOR THE TWO YEARS IMMEDIATELY
PRECEDING SUBMISSION OF THIS BID;
OR
( > BIDDER| IS Al NONRESIDENT VENDOR EMPLOYING A
MINIMUM OF ONE HUNDRED STATE RESIDENTS| OR IS A
NONRESIDENT VENDOR WITH AN AFFILIATE OR SUBSIDIARY
WHICH MAINTAINS ITS HEADQUARTERS OR PRINCIPAL PLACE

OF BUSINESS WITHIN WEST VIRGINIA EMPLOYING A MINIMUM
OF ONE HUNDRED STATE RESIDENTS WHO CERTIFIES THAT,
DURING THE LJIFE OF THE| CONTRACT, ON AVERAGE AT LEAST
75% OF THE EMPLOYEES OR BIDDERS' AFFIL|IATE'S OR-
SUBSIDIARY'S| EMPLOYEES| ARE RESIDENTS OF WEST VIRGINIA
WHO HAVE RES|IIDED [IN THE STATE CONTINUOUSLY FOR THE TWO
YEARS IMMEDIATELY| PRECEDING SUBMISSION OF THIS BID.

BIDDER UNDERSTANDS IF |[THE SECRETARY OF, TAX & REVENUE
DETERMINES THAT A BIDDER RECEIVING PREFERENCE HAS
FAILED TO CONTINUE TO MEET THE REQUIREMENTS FOR SUCH
PREFERENCE, [THE SECRETARY MAY ORDER THE DIRECTOR OF
PURCHASING T0: (jA) RESCIND THE CONTRACT OR PURCHASE
ORDER ISSUED|; OR [(B) ASSESS A PENALTY AGAINST SUCH .
BIDDER IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 5% OF THE -BID AMOUNT
AND THAT SUCH PENALTY WILL BE PAID TO [THE CONTRACTING
AGENCY OR DEDUCTED FROM ANY UNPAID BAL/ANCE ON THE
CONTRACT OR |PURCHASE ORDER. .

DATE

TILE FEIN ADDRESS CHANGES TO BE NOTED ABOVE
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Purchasing Division
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%¥709043333
" SUTTLE & STALNAKER PLLC
THE VIRGINIA CENTER SUITE 100
1611 VIRGINIA STREET EAST
CHARLESTON WV 25301

Purchasing Division

State of West Virginia
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State of West Virginia
Department of Administration
Purchasing Division. _
2019 Washington Street East
Post Office Box 50130
Charleston, WV 25305-0130

*¥709063333
SUTTLE & STALNAKER PLLC,
THE VIRGINIA CENTER SUITE
1411 VIRGINIA STREET EAST
CHARLESTON WV 25301
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STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

REQUEST FOR QUOTATIONS
FOR
PROFESSIONAL AUDITING SERVICES

, OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION CONTROL
REVOLVING FUND



I. - NATURE OF SERVICES REQUESTED U9

A. General

The Department of Environmental Protection (Department) is soliciting the service of
qualified firms of Certified Public Accountants to audit the West Virginia Water v
Pollution Control Revolving Fund, also known as the Clean Water State Revolvmg Fund

(CWSREF) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007.
B. Scope of Work to be Performed

The Department reqﬁires the auditor to express an opinion on the fair presentation of the.
CWSRF’s financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles and render a report on the internal controls and compliance with Title VI of the

Clean Water Act.
C. = Auditing Standards to be Followed

To meet the requirements of this Request for Quotations, the audit shall be perfonned in
accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards as set forth by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States.

D. Reports to be Issued

Following the completion of the audit of the financial statements, the auditor shall issue a
report on their fair presentation in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles; a report on the internal controls and a report on compliance with Title VI of

the Clean Water Act.

Irregularities and illegal acts. _

Auditors shall be required to make an immediate, written report of all irregularities and
illegal acts of which they become aware to the Comptroller of the Financial Accounting
and Reporting Section (FARS) under the authority of Section 5A-2-33 of the State Code,
as well as to the Secretary of the Department, the Division Director of the Division of

Water and Waste Management (DWWM) and the Department’s Controller.

Reporting to the Department’s Secretary.
The auditors shall assure themselves that the Department is informed of each of the

- following:
1. The auditor’s responsibility under Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.
2. Significant accounting policies.
3. Other information in documents containing audited financial statements.
4. Disagreements with management.
5. Difficulties encountered in performing the audit.



E. ~Special Considerations

The audit of the CWSRF is funded by the United States Environmental Protection
Agency (USEPA).

Federal and State audit requirements.

1. The auditor will include a reasonable period of time for meetings with

USEPA in the bid.
2. The per hour rate will be spelled out in the bid so that only hours actually

spent with USEPA will be charged at the rate.
3. Any anticipated travel must be incorporated into the vendor’s fee. No
travel will be reimbursed by the State and is the sole responsibility of the

vendor
F. Workmg Paper Retention and Access to Working Papers

All working papers and reports must be retained, at the auditor’s expense, for a period of
five (5) years, unless the firm is notified in writing by the Department of the need to
extend the retention penod The auditor will be required to make working papers
available, upon request, to the followmg parties or their designees:

Controller
Department of Environmental Protection
~ State of West Virginia.

Financial Accounting and Reporting Section
Department of Administration
State of West Virginia

United States Environmental Protection Agency
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

In addition, the firm shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of successor audit firms and
federal grantors and allow the review of working papers relating to matters of continuing
accounting significance.

II. DESCRIPTION OF THE WATER POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING
FUND
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A. Names and Telephone Number of Contact Persons and Location of Offices

The auditor’s principal contact with the Division will be the Controller or a designated
representative who will coordinate the assistance to be provided by the Department to the

auditors. .

LIST OF KEY POSITIONS, OFFICE LOCATIONS AND TELEPHONE NUMBERS

Mike Johnson

Program Manager

601 57" Street, S.E.
Charleston, WV 25304
Telephone: 926-0499 ext. 1611

Ramona S. Dickson, CPA
Controller ‘

601 57 Street, S.E.
Charleston, WV 25304
Telephone: 926-0499 ext. 1551

Jennifer R. Paxton, CPA
Accounting & Financial Reporting Manager
601 57™ Street, S.E.
Charleston, WV 25304
Telephone: 926-0499 ext.1565

B. Background Information

The Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (CWSRF) was established under Article 2,
Chapter 22C of the West Virginia Code to fill the void left by the demise of the
Construction Grants Program. The purpose of this fund is to:

D Provide low interest loans to communities that require sewer service either
by upgrading the existing wastewater system or establishing a new utility.

2) “Clean” up the State’s water supply, and

3) Exist in perpetuity by administering the principal, administrative fees and
interest earned from the repayment of loans.

The WVDERP Division of Water and Waste Management maintains responsibility for the
operation and general management of this fund. The fund has been in operation since
November 1, 1991.

The source of revenue for the CWSRF includes principal repayments, interest earnings
both on the loans made and from the subsequent investments of these payments with the
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Investment Management Board, administrative fees, Federal Grants and the 20% state
match funds provided by the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs and Development

Council.

Once the project has miet all pre-construction technical and administrative requirements,
the loan recipients are allowed to go to bid. A bid package is submitted for review and
authorization before loan closing is set. The Water Development Authority (WDA) is the
Program’s bank. The WDA bond counsel takes the necessary steps to insure the bonds
payable by the locality to the CWSRF are properly issued. The WDA also monitors the
loans to ensure that the repayment schedules are being met.-

The loan recipients make the principal, interest and administrative fee repayments
directly to the Municipal Bond Commission (MBC). The MBC calculates the interest
due on each repayment and maintains the repayment schedules. The MBC transfers the
funds collected to the CWSRF on a quarterly basis. The funds, if not currently required,
are then invested with the Investment Management Board.

C.  Department Structure/Method of Reporting

The Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund is administered by the Division of Water
and Waste Management, with oversight by the Office of Administration, Fiscal Services.

The CWSRF operates as a special revenue fund of the Department. The fund is
accounted for and reported as an enterprise business-type fund in West Virginia’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and in separately reported financial statements.

D. Maintenance and Tracking of Financial Operations

‘The financial operations of the Department are maintained as follows:

Hardware: »
e Cisco (routers, fast Ethernet switches, firewall services, vpn solution, etc.)

e IBM xSeries 342 Type: 8669 servers (file/print services, data storage, web
hosting, data processing, etc.)

e IBM Storage Area Network (SAN) solution

e Silicon Graphics servers

Network Operating Systems:

Novell Netware (user data/file/print services proxy services email)
Microsoft Server (web server applications, Internet/Intranet content)
IRIX (GIS data and applications)

Linux (Oracle database functionality)

Personal Computer Operating Systems and Applications:
e Microsoft Windows 2000
e Microsoft Windows XP
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Microsoft Office Suite (Word, Excel, Access, Powerpomt)

Group Wise email

Passport 3270 emulation software (telnet/mainframe access software)
WordPerfect

GIS Applications (ArcView, ArcInfo, etc.)

Crystal Reporting

Internet Explorer

ERIS (Environmental Resource Information System)

Outside Systems Utilized:
e State Mainframe (FIMS, EPICS, Inventory, etc.)
e AVS (Office of Surface Mining Violator System)

CWSREF financial statements are currently maintained"using Microsoft Excel. However,
the CWSRF Project Manager is being implemented. Project Manager is a Microsoft
Access-based software application designed to help states manage the financial and

technical aspect of their projects.
E. Availability of Audit Reports and Work Papers

Reports and work papers for the Fund’s fiscal years 2005 and 2006 will be niade
available upon request from the WVDEP Controller.

F. Audit of Investments
The CWSRF’s investment portfolio is managed by and in the custody of the Investmeht
Management Board (IMB) of the State of West Virginia. The IMB is audited annually by

independent Certified Public Accountants. The auditor will be required by the
Department to rely on this audit work to the fullest extent.

. TIME REQUIREMENTS

A. Terms of Engagement

The contract is to audit the trial balance and the Statement of Net Assets, Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets, and the Statement of Cash Flows
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007.

B. Timetable for Completion of Audit

Conference Within 2 weeks of Notice to Proceed.
Field work completed and draft financial

statements August 31, 2007

Exit conference and draft audit report - | September 24, 2007

Final audit report ‘October 5, 2007
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The exit conference will be held with the Controller, the Program Manager and the .
Accounting and Financial Reporting Manager. The purpose of the meeting will be to
summarize the results of the audit.

Thirty s1gned copies of the Independent Auditor’s Report on the ﬁrm s letterhead will be
dehvered to the Controller. '

IV. = ASSISTANCE TO BE PROVIDED TO TI—IE AUDITOR AND REPORT
PREPARATION '

A. Fiscal Services Office and Clerical Assistance

Fiscal Services office staff and responsible management personnel will be available
during the audit to assist the firm by providing information documentation and
explanations. The preparation of confirmations, including copies for Fiscal Services, will
be the respon31b111ty of the auditor.

B. Fiscal Services Staff Assistance

The Controller and Accounting and Financial Reporting Manager will provide draft
copies of the financial statements, notes to financial statements, relevant supporting work
papers, and will be available to coordinate requests for additional information.

C. Report Preparation
Report preparation, editing, and printing shall be the responsibility of the auditor.

V. TOTAL ALL-INCLUSIVE MAXIMUM PRICE

Cost Proposal

The cost proposal shall contain all pricing information relative to performing the
engagement as described in the Request for Quotations. The total all-inclusive maximum.
price to be bid is to contain all direct and indirect costs including all out-of-pocket

expenses.
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RFQ No. DEP14100

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA
Purchasing Division 116

PURCHASING AFFIDAVIT

West Virginia Code §5A-3-10a states: No contract or renewal of any contract may be awarded by the state or
any of its political subdivisions to any vendor or prospective vendor when the vendor or prospective vendor or
a related party to the vendor or prospective vendor is a debtor and the debt owned is an amount greater than

one thousand dollars in the aggregate

DEFINITIONS:
“Debt” means any assessment, premium, penalty, fine, tax or other amount of money owed to the state or any

of its political subdivisions because of a judgment, fine, permit violation, license assessment, defaulted
workers' compensation premium, penalty or other assessment presently delinquent or due and required to be
paid to the state or any of its political subdivisions, including any interest or additional penalties accrued

thereon., '

“Debtor" means any individual, corporation, partnership, association, limited liability company or any other form

or business association owing a debt to the state or any of its political subdivisions. “Political subdivision”
means any county commission; municipality; county board of education; any instrumentality established by a
county or municipality; any separate corporation or instrumentality established by one or more counties or
municipalities, as permitted by law; or any public body charged by law with the performance of a government
function or whose jurisdiction is coextensive with one or more counties or municipalities. “Related party” means
a party, whether an individual, corporation, partnership, association, limited liability company or any other form
or business association or other entity whatsoever, related to-any vendor by blood, marriage, ownership or
contract through which the party has a relationship of ownership or other interest with the vendor so that the
party will actually or by effect receive or control a portion of the benefit, profit or other consideration from
performance of a vendor contract with the party receiving an amount that meets or exceed five percent of the

fotal contract amount.

EXCEPTION: The prohibition of this section does not apply where a vendor has contested any tax
administered pursuant to chapter eleven of this code, workers' compensation premium, permit fee or
environmental fee or assessment and the matter has not become final or where the vendor has entered into a
payment plan or agreement and the vendor is notin default of any of the provisions of such plan or agreement.

LICENSING: Vendors must be licensed and in good standing in accordance with any and all state and local
laws and requirements by any state or local agency of West Virginia, including, but not limited to, the West
Virginia Secretary of State's Office, the West Virginia Tax Department, West Virginia Insurance Commission,
or any other state agencies or political subdivision. Furthermore, the vendor must provide all necessary
releases to obtain information to enable the Director or spending unit to verify that the vendor is licensed and in

good standing with the above entities.

CONFIDENTIALITY: The vendor agrees that he or she will not disciose to anyone, directly or indirectly, any
such personally identifiable information or other confidential information gained from the agency, unless the
individual who is the subject of the information consents to the disclosure in writing or the disclosure is made
pursuant to the agency's policies, procedures and rules. Vendors should visit www.state.wv.us/

admin/purchase/privacy for the Notice of Agency Confidentiality Policies.

Under penalty of law for false swearing (West Virginia Code, §61-5-3), it is hereby certified that the vendor
‘acknowledges the information in this said affidavit and are in compliance with the requirements as stated.

Vendor's Name: kﬁL&‘H“LF N S+0J m{éﬁf 3 pLL/Q-/
Authorized Signature: jm&f& /JMJQC 6&%(& /@r) ')QOO"\'I

Purchasing Affidavit (Revised 04/15/07)




*70

141

SUTTLE & STALNAKER PLLC .
THE VIRGINIA CENTER SUITE 100

CHARLESTON WV

State of West Virginia
Department of Administration
Purchasing Division ‘
2019 Washington. Street East
Post Office Box 50130 .
Charleston, WV 25305-0130

Quotation

9043333 3064-3643-4126

1 VIRGINIA STREET EAST
25301

Request for =

- ICHUCK BOWMAN

DEP146100

306-558-2157

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
DEPARTMENT OF

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION

601 57TH STREET SE

CHARLESTON, WV

25304 3064-926-0499

T 06/14/2007

BID OPENING DATE

06/27/2007

BID OPENING TIME 01:30PM

- 101

0 X365 % XX XXX XXXXX®®¥® ADDENDUM NO.

1

ADDENDUM ISSUED F
ADD THE REPO
2005 & 2006,
SPECIFICATIO

PER
NS SE

VENDO
CTION II.E.
BID DATE AND
06/27/2007 A D PM.

KHHRIERIRXNXXXHEXXX NO

LS 966-20
1

AUDITING SERVICES

OR THE AUDITING SERVI :
RTS AND PAPERS FOR THE FUND'S FISCAL YEARS
R REQUEST AS ALL
ON PAGE 1

ING HAVE BEEN EXTENDE

OTHER CHANGES *xx

36 3 36 [ 36 36 3 3 X 36 36 36 36 36 3 36 X % ¥
CES CONTRACT TO

OWED IN THE
3 OF THE RFQ.

D TO:

KHEXXKEEHEHKIINXXXX

i NATURE

TELEPHONE

TITLE

FEIN

ADDRESS CHANGES TO BE NOTED ABOVE




Audited Financial Statements
with Other Financial Information

The West Virginia Water Pollution
Control Revolving Fund

Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005




Aundited Financial Sﬁaiementsv
with Other‘FinanciaI Information

THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

TABLE OF CONTENTS
| Page
Indcpcndent Auditors’ Report ‘ | 1-2
Management’s Discussion and Analysis o ' 3-8
Financial Statements: |
Statement of Net Assets- E 9
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Ch#nges in Fund Net Assets 10
Statement of Cash Flows _ 11-12
Notes to Financial Staicm‘cnts _ ' 13-28
Schedules of Individual Fund Activity: |
Schedule of Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets 29
Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 30
Schedule of Cash Flows | | 30-31
Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable
. to the Capitalization Grant for Clean Water State Revolving Fund
and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the
Program Specific Audit Option under OMB Circular A-133. 32-33
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 34-35
Other Financial Infdrmati on: |
GAAP Transmittal Form (Forms 1-16) 36
Form 7 - Deposits Disclosure ' ' 37
Form 8 — Investments Disclosure ' 38
Form 8A — Deposits and Investments Reconciliation ' 39

Form 16 — Prior Year Audit Findings ‘ 40



004

gandkcpas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

West Virginia Water Pollution
Control Revolving Fund
Charleston, West Virginia

We have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of the West Virginia Water
Pollution Control Revolving Fund (the Fund), a component unit of the State of West Virginia, as
of June 30, 2006 and 2005, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in fund
net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Fund’s management. Our respons1bﬂ1ty is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We oonducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
s1gmﬁcant .estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to.above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Fund as of June 30, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 to 8 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures that consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the supplementary information. However, we did not andit the information and express no

opinion on it.

300 CHASE TOWER | 707 VIRGINIA STREET, EAST I CHARLESTON,W-V25301 | PHONE: 304.345.8400 | FAX: 304345.8451



Our andit was conducted for the purpose of forriung an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedules of individual fund activity on pages

29 to 31 and the other financial information on pages 36 to 40 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the audmng procedures applied in the aundit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the
bas1c financial statements taken as a whole.

September 15, 2006
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MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

-UNAUDITED-

Our discussion and analysis of the West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection’s
(WVDEP) West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (the Fund) will provide an
overview of the Fund’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The Fund
operates as the State’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund under the federal Clean Water Act
(CWA). Please read this in conjunction with the financial statements that begin on page 9.

Financial Highlights

The Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund’s increase in net assets was approximately 6.6% or
$28.3 million. The increase in net assets was due mainly to an increase in loans receivable.

Operating expenses of the Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund program were 3.8% less than
FY2005.

During the fiscal year the Fund had operating revenue that exceeded operating expenses by
$1,664,974. This is a 42.6% increase over last fiscal year and is due to increases in revenune from'
administrative fees and interest income on loans plus decreases in central support allocation of
- overhead expense and contractual expense.

The Fund’s operating revenue of $3.383 million was a 14.6% increase over FY2005. This
increase, again, is a result of the increases in administrative fees and interest income on loans.
This is viewed as favorable since the operating revenue base has consistently increased over the
past four years. ' '

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets, and Statement of Cash
Flows on pages 9 to 12, respectively, provide information about the activities of the Fund and
present a long-term view of the Fund’s finances. Financial information for the Revolving Loan
Fund and the Administrative Fund are shown separately on pages 29 to 31.

We have determined by reviewing the financial statements that the Fund continues to be
financially sound and stable. All of the current fiscal year’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. The Fund’s net assets, the difference
. between assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the Fund’s financial health. The continued
increase in net assets is one indicator of improving financial position. The Fund consists only of
business-type activities. Governmental activities and other operations of the WVDEP are not a
part of the Fund and are not shown as a part of these financial statements.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

-UNAUDITED-

The West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund

The West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund is comprised of two separate funds.
The funds are established by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and
by State of West Virginia statute. Both funds are proprietary funds and use full accrual
accounting. A Statement of Cash Flows accompanies the Statement of Net Assets and Statement
of Revenues Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets :

The 1987 amendments to the CWA phased out the EPA Construction Grants Program that began
in 1972 and replaced it with the CWSRF, a new low interest loan program. The CWSRF.
program provides fiunding to address water quality problems through wastewater facility -
construction, upgrades, or expansions as well as implementation of Non Point Source (NPS) best
management practices (BMPs).

In 1989, the West Virginia State Legislature passed the CWSRF enabling law (Chapter 22C,
Article 2 of the State Code). The legislation designated DEP as the State’s CWSRF management
agency. DEP provides general oversight, fiscal management, and administrative compliance
review of local governmental entities that receive funds. In 1990, DEP promulgated program
rules and awarded its first CWSRF loan in November 1991.

State law also provides that the West Virginia Water Development Authority (WDA) be
responsible for monitoring detailed financial transactions of the CWSRF. WDA assists DEP in
loan closings, repayments monitoring, and other financial transactions. WDA is a State bond
bank that has been in existence for over 25 years.

In 1994, the Legislature created the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council
(IIDC) to coordinate State and Federal funding on all water and sewer projects. Before a
community can receive a commitment of CWSRF funding, the project must first receive a
positive recommendation from the IJDC as required by State law. In addition, the IJDC oversees
the disbursement of State general obligation bond and revenue bond proceeds for water, sewer,
and economic development projects. DEP participates in the ITDC process to the fullest extent to
promote environmentally sound and affordable wastewater projects. Additional coordination
with offices of the State Treasurer and the State Auditor ensure inter- and intra-agency

coordination, management, oversight, and integrity of the program.
The CWSRF currently has three financial assistance programs:

e Low Interest Loan Program (for municipal wastewater treatment works),
o Agriculture Water Quality Loan Program; and
e On-Site Systems Loan Program.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

-UNAUDITED-

The West Virginia Water Pullutidn Control Revolving Fund as a Whole

Table 1
Net Assets
(in thousands) .
2006 2005

Current assets | $ 100234 § 90407
Non current assets ‘ 357,780 339,309
Total assets 458,014 429,716
Current liabilities v (45) | (88)
Other liabilities _ - (362) (329)
Total liabilities (407) ' (417)
Net assets:

Total restricted net assets ‘ 457,607 $ 429,299

The net assets increased by $28.3 million or around 6.6% during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2006. Fiscal Year 2006 represented the receipt of the 15’*’ Clean Water State Revolving Fund
(CWSRF) Capitalization Grant. These funds were committed to finance loans for. municipal
wastewater pollution control projects for the control of municipal pollution from point source
discharges. “Second round funds” are those dollars available within the CWSRF fiom
repayments of prior loans and investment earnings. They are used for nonpoint source pollution
‘control project loans and waste water facility funding. Effective October 1, 2002, our program
began using the 2000 census as a basis for determining the inferest rate and loan term based on
median household income. '



[AYAY §1
‘3‘(..:8 6

MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

-UNAUDITED-

_ Table 2
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
(in thousands)
2006 - 2005
Operating revenues: .
Interest income on loans $ - 1,954 $ 1,744
Administration fees on loans , 1,429 1,210
, : 3,383 2,954
- Operating expenses : 1,718 1,786
Total operating income 1,665 $ 1; 168
Non-operating reﬁenue: ~ : '

Investment iricome - 3,033 $ 1,344
Income before capital grants and contributions 4,698 2,512
Capital grants and contributions 23,‘609 39,785
Change in net assets ' $ 28,307 $ 42,297

Revenue for fiscal year 2006 was positively impacted by a $1.689 million increase in investment
income. This was due to a recovery of the rate of return on investments. The rate at June 30,
2006 and 2005, respectively, was 5% and 3%. '

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The Fund does not own any land, buildings, equipment or infrastructure.

Significant Fécts, Decisions or Conditions

Our grant award for FY 2006 was $16,7§8,100 with a required state match of $3,359,620. This

latest award was actually an amendment to the FY2005 grant. The state match was provided by
the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Couricil and deposited in the CWSRF

account.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

-UNAUDITED-

The average federal allocation had been $20 million throngh FY2004. The 2005 federal
allocation dropped to $16,798,100. The FY2006 capitalization grant award represents an 18%
reduction from the previous federal grant received and was awarded on September 27, 2006 for
$13,650,912 to the CWSRF. Finally, the President’s proposed budget for FY2007 cuts the
federal funding levels once again by 22% for the CWSRF program. ’ '

The CWSRF program experienced a decline in FY2006 in terms of loan assistance provided to
projects inifiating construction. Certainly the effects of the 2005 hurricane season played a
major tole in affecting pipe availability, prices and ultimately, the bidding of projects. It is
hoped that in calendar years 2006 and 2007 the construction industry will return to normal
stability so that more projects are able to bid and begin construction. A multi-agency task force
initiated by the Confractor’s Association meets often to discuss issues of importance to the

construction industry.

The number of loans in monetary and technical default decreased during FY2006. The West
Virginia Water Development Authority monitors all of these situations and takes appropriate
action, when necessary, to cure these deficiencies. A detailed report on each of these enfities
- with loan deficiencies is contained in the CWSRF annual report for FY2006. There is one ¢))
loan for apptoximately $15.5 million in default that equates to a delinquency rate of 3.2%. The
major reasons for this lone defanlt is delayed construction hook up of another community that
was unable to make payments and confractor problems. All customers were online as of May
2006 and revenues were close to what was anficipated. The Fund does not expect a permanent
default and anticipates the loan recipient will continue to reduce the default amount in coming

months.

Deficiencies in reserves decreased by $300,000. Restrictions placed by the Public Service
Commission (PSC), decrease in water usage, and population decline are the main causes for loan
recipients using their reserves to make loan principal payments. Seven of the sixteen with
deficient reserves are requesting or have rate increases before the PSC.

Previously, a policy placed a ceiling of 50% of the current year’s available loan funds to any
single recipient. The demand for SRF funds has exceeded the availability of funds. In FY2006,
the policy restricting maximum allowable funds was lifted. This practice will be reviewed
annually,

Beginning in FY2005, we established a plan for multimillion-dollar projects that cannot be
scoped down to a reasonable cost. In this plan a specific dollar amount of the SRF participation
is committed to a Bond Anticipation Note (BAN). Each year the SRF will commit an amount in
repayment funds based on the amount of the BAN. The loan will be closed 6 to 9 months
following proposed comstruction completion. Repayment will begin the first fisll Municipal
Bond Commission quarter following loan closing. During FY2006 one of these multimillion-
dollar projects occurred. '



MANAGEMENT'S VDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

-UNAUDITED-

During FY2006 a programmatic change was made in which all future loan commitments made in
FY2007 and the remainder of FY2006 were designated as "non-equivalency”, meaning no
federal requirements would be imposed on these loan recipients. This action will help to reduce
the overall project costs on future projects. - .

Also during FYO06, the Division of Water and Waste Management reorganized which affected the
CWSRF program. Both the Engineering and the Management Sections were moved back under
one Assistant Director of the Division. This has improved program efficiency and effectiveness.
Also in May 2006, a new "acting" leader of the Engineering Section was named to replace the
previous section leader who moved to a different position within the CWSRF program.

Contacting the Fund’s Financial Management

The financial reports are designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the Fund’s finances and to show the Fund’s accountability
for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the Fiscal Office of WVDEP at 601 57"~ Street S.E., Charleston, WV
25304 or the State Revolving Fund at 601 57" Street S.E., Charleston, WV 25304, 304-926-

0440. ' ‘
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CONTROL REVOLVING FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2006 and 2005
2006
‘ ASSETS
Currmf_ assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 80,505,357
Receivables:

Due from U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Due from West Virginia Department of
Environmental Protection

Interest on loans

Administrative fees on loans

Current maturities of loans receivable

Total cuzrent assets
Loans receivable, net of current maturities
Total ‘assets
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
A ccounts payable

Due to WV Department of Environmental Protection’

Total current Habﬂiti es
Compensated absences
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Net assets, restricted

Total net assets

$ 72,418,411

58,187 84,534
23,835 61,367
171,246 164,778
123,584 115,336
19,352,073 17,562,557
100,234,282 90,406,983
357,779,681 339,309,386
$ 458,013,963  $ 429,716,369
28,947 30,515

15,921 57.153
44,868 87,668
362,468 329,396
407,336 417,064
457,606,627 429,299,305
$ 457,606,627  $ 429,299,305

+ The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

Operating revenues:
Interest on loans
Administrative fees

Operating éxpensés:
. Personnel costs
Other administrative costs
~ Total operating income

Non-operating revenues:
Investment income

Income before capital grants and confributions
Capital grants and contributions:
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
State of West Virginia
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

2006

10

2005

$ 1,954,190

$ 1,743,276

1.429.254 1.210.160
3,383 444 2.053.436
1,276,035 1,238,064
442.435 547.851
1.718.470 1.785.915
1.664.974 1.167.521
3,032,025 1,344,120
4,607,899 2,511,641
20,241,737 31,477,847
3.367.686 8307321
23,600,423 30.785.168
28,307,322 42,296,800
429,299,305 387,002,496
$ 457,606,627  § 429,299.305

The accompanying notes are an integral part of fhese financial statements.



THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

Operating activities:

Cash payments for:
Loans originated
Personnel expenses

' Administrative expenses

Cash receipts for:
Principal repayments
Interest on loans revenue
Administrative fee revenne

Net cash used in operating activities
Capital and related financing activities:
Decrease in escrow for Hinton projects
Capital grants and contributions from the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency
Capital grants and contnbuhons from the State of
West Virginia

Net cash provided by capital and related
financing activities

Investing activities:
Investment income

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents balance, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

| 53.14 11

2006 2005
$(37,879,655)  $(60,671,635)
(1,251,295) (1,262,898)
(439,371) (578,760)
17,619,844 15,909,323
1,947,722 1,720,212
1,421,006 1,188,416
(18,581,749) (43,695,342)
- " (768,126)
20,268,084 34,346,928
3,367,686 8,307,321
23,635,770 41,886,123
3,032,925 1,344,120
8,086,046 (465,099)
72,418,411 72,883,510

$ 80,505,357

$ 72,418,411

(Continued)



THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

- STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

Reconciliation of operating income to cash used in operating activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided
by operating activities:
Increase in loans receivable, net
(Increase) decrease in other receivables
Increase (decrease) in due to WV Department of
Environmental Protection
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Decrease in accounts payable

2006

13

2005

$ 1,664,974

$ 1,167,521

(20,259,811) (44,762,312)
22,816 (82,568)
(41,232) 35,283
33,072 (28,349)
(1,568) (24,917)
$(18,581,749)  $(43,695,342)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1-DESCRIPTION OF THE FUND

The West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund (the Fund) was established
pursuant to Title VI of the Clean Water Act and by the West Virginia Legislature under
Chapter 22C, Article 2 of the West Virginia Code, as a component unit of the State of West
Virginia. The purpose of the act was to establish and implement a State operated revolving
loan fund to provide low interest loans to communities that Tequire sewer Service either by
upgrading the existing wastewater system or establishing a new utility, clean up the State’s
water supply, and remain in perpetuity by recirculating the principal and interest earned from -
the loans. The Fund’s loan programs are designed to provide financial assistance to local
govemnmental entities (such as municipalities and public service districts) in West Virginia to
assist in complying with the Clean Water Act. Such loan programs provide long-term
financing to cover the cost of construction for qualifying projects for pollution control,
including non-point source projects and developing estuary conservation and management
plans. ‘

The Fund was capitalized by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) through a

- series of grants starting in 1990. States are required to provide an additional twenty percent

- of the Federal award as matching finds in order to receive continued funding. As of June 30,

2006, Congress authorized the EPA to award $363,872,475 in capital grants and

_contributions to the Fund. The State of West Virginia is required to contribute $72,798,072
in matching funds. : ‘

The State of West Virginia charges the Fund for time spent on activities by employees,
and the Fund reimburses the State of West Virginia for such costs. The charges include the
salaries and benefits of the employees, as well as indirect costs allocated to the Fund based
on direct salary costs. Employees charging time to the Fund are covered by the benefits
provided to all employees of the State of West Virginia.

2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICiES

Basis of Presentation

The Fund is a component unit of the State of West Virginia and is accounted for as a
proprietary fund special purpose government engaged in business type activities. In
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34,
“Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Anmalysis for State and Local -
Governments,” and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the financial statements are prepared on the accrnal basis of accounting, using the flow of
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

economic resources measurement focus. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. As permitted by GASB
Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Fund has elected not to
adopt Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued
after November 30, 1989, unless the GASB specifically adopts such FASB statements or
mterpretahons

The Fund is included in the State’s basic financial statements as a proprietary fund and
business type activity using the accrnal basis of accounting. Because of the Fund’s
presentation in these financial statements as a special purpose government engaged in
business type activities, there may be differences in presentation between the amounts

reported in these financial statements and the basic financial statements of the State as a .

result of major fund determination.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of interest-earning deposits with the West
Virginia Board of Treasury Investments (BTI) as of June 30, 2006 and the West Virginia
Investment Management Board (IMB) as of June 30, 2005, which are carried at market
value, which approximates cost. These deposits are not separately identifiable as to specific
types of securities. Such funds are available to the Fund with overnight notice. -

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from management’s estimates.

Loans Receivable

The State of West Virginia operates the Fund as a revolving direct loan program,
whereby loans made to recipients are funded by the Federal capital grants and contributions

i



THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
'CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Covntinued)‘

Loans Receivable ( Conﬁnued)

and the correspond.mg state matching amount. Loan funds are disbursed to the local recipient
agencies as they incur costs on the approved project. Interest, if apphcable is calculated
from the date that recipients begin repayment, and the payment schedule is adjusted for
actual amounts disbursed and intefest accrued. The loans are secured by a lien on the
revenues of the recipients’ system project and by debt service reserve funds held by the West
Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. No provision for uncollectible accounts has been
made since management believes that all loans will be repaid.

Administrative Fees

Admin;isu*aﬁve fees are composed of a percentage of the outstanding loan balance and are
recognized as income when fees are earned over the life of the loan. A dministrative fees are
collected concurrently with principal reduction payments by individual borrowers at terms
set forth in the applicable loan agreements over the life of the loan.

Comnensated Absences

The Fund’s accrued compensated absences totaled $362,468 and $329,396 at June 30,
2006 and 2005, respectively, for estimated unfunded obhgaﬁons that may arise in connection
with compensated absences for vacation and sick leave. Employees fully vest in all earned
but unused vacation. In accordance with State personnel policies, employees hired prior to
July 1, 2001 vest in unused sick leave only upon refirement, at which time such unused leave
can be converted into employer paid premiums for postretirement health care coverage or
additional periods of credited service for purposes of determining retirement benefits.
Employees hired subsequent to June 30, 2001 do not vest in unused sick leave.

Capital Grants and Contributions

Amounts received from the EPA and the State of West Vlrgmla for the continued
capitalization of the Fund are recorded at cost as capital grants and confributions.

Net Assets’

. Net assefs are the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets are presented as
restricted. Restrictions on net assets are externally imposed constraints by the grantor agency
on the residual portion of capital grants and contributions available for lending purposes.
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION

- CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Opérating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also includes all
revenue and expenses not related to capital and related ﬁnancmg, non-capital financing, or
investing activities.

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with the State Treasurer’s Office, the BTI,
and the IMB. ,

At June 30, 2006 and 2005, the balances with each were as follows:

2006 2005
State Treasurer’s Office $ : - $ 11,783
BTI ' 80,505,357 -
IMB ‘ - 72,406,628
Total $ 80,505,357 §.72,418411

The State Treasurer’s Office has statutory responsibility for the daily cash management
activities of the State’s agencies, departments, boards, and commissions. The State
Treasurer’s Office determines which funds to transfer to the BTI as of June 30, 2006 and the
IMB as of June 30, 2005 for investment in accordance with the West Virginia Code, policies
set by the BTI and IMB, and provisions of bond indentures and trust agreements when
applicable. The Fund’s cash balances are invested with the BTI and IMB in investment

pools.

Deposits with BTI and IMB at June 30, 2006 and 2005, were invested in two investment
pools as follows:

2006 2005
Cash liquidity pool $ 76,501,707 $ 69,724,445
Government money market pool 4,003,650 2,682,183

Total investments $ 80,505,357 $ 72,406,628




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

The following information addresses risks associated with deposited investments with the
BTI as of June 30, 2006:

Cash Liquidity Pool
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk thai an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill -
its obligations.

The BTI limits the exposure to credit risk in the Cash Liguidity Pool by requiring all
corporate bonds to be rated AA by Standard & Poor’s (or its equivalent) or higher.
Commercial paper must be rated at least A-1 by Standard & Poor’s and P1 by Moody’s. The
pool must have atleast 15% of'its assets in U.S. Treasury issues.

The following table provides information on the credit ratings of the cash liquidity pool’s
investments:

: o Percent of
Security Type Moody’s  S&P  Camying Value = Agsefs
Commercial paper P1 A-1 $ 943,057,000 54.14%
U.S. treasury bills Aaa AAA 306,279,000 17.58%
Corporate notes Aaa AAA 61,992,000 3.56%
Corporate notes Aa AA 55,063,000 3.16%
Corporate notes Aa A 12,000,000 .69%
Certificates of deposit P1 - A-l 99,000,000 5.68%
U.S. agency bonds Aaa AAA 43,663,000 - 2.51%
U.S agency discount notes Pl A-1 93,851,000 5.39%
Money market funds Aaa AAA 758,000 0.04%
Total rated investments $1,615,663,000 - 92.75%

Unrated securities include certificates of deposit of $23,800,000 and repurchase
agreements of $102,339,000. Acceptable collateral for the repurchase agreements include
U.S. Treasury and government agency securities, all of which carry the highest credit rating,
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3--CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (C ontmued)
Cash hgmdu:x Pool (Conﬁnued)

Concen tration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss atfributed to the magnitude of an
investment in a single corporate issuer. v

West Virginia statutes prohibit the cash liquidity pool from investing more than 5% of its
assets in securities issued by a single private corporation or association. At June 30, 2006,
the pool did not have investments in any one private corporation or association that
represented more than 5% of assets.

Custodial credit risk

The custodial credit risk for 1investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transachon, the BTI will not be able to recover the value of mvestment or
~ collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party

At June 30, 2006, the cash liquidity pool held no securiﬁes that were subject to custodial
credit risk. Repurchase agreements are collateralized at 102% and the collateral is held in the
name of the BTI. Securities lending collateral that is reported in the BTI’s audited Statement
of Fiduciary Net Assets is invested in the lending agent’s money market fund in the BTI’s

name.
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment.-

The overall weighted average maturity of the investment of the Cash Liquidity Pool
cannot exceed 60 days. Maximum maturity of individual securities cannot exceed 397 days
from date of purchase.



THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (C ontinued)
‘Cash Lignidity Pool (Continned)
Interest rate risk (Continued).

The following table provides information on the welghted average maturities for the
various asset types in the Cash Liquidity Pool.

Security Type Carrying Value WAM

Commercial paper $ 943,057,000 25
U. S. Treasury bills : 306,279,000 32
Corporate notes © 129,055,000 - 77
Certificates of deposit 122,800,000 105
U.S. Agency bonds 43,663,000 208
Repurchase agreements ' ' 102,339,000 3
U.S. Agency discount notes 93,851,000 89

- Money market funds 758,000 1
Total assets . - $1741,802,000 42

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversély affect the
fair value of an investment or deposit. The cash liquidity pool has no securities that are
subject to foreign currency risk.

Govemm ent Money Market Pool

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. ‘

The BTI limits the exposure to cred1t nsk in the Government Money Market Pool by
limiting the pool to U. 8. Treasury issues, U.S. government agency issues, money market
funds investing in U. 8. Treasury issues and U. S. government agency issues, and repurchase
agreements collateralized by U. S. Treasury issues and U. S. government agency issues. The
Pool must have 15% of'its assets in U.S. Treasury issues.
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Government Money Market Pool (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

. The following tablelprovides information on the credit ratings of the _vaemm ent Money
. Market Pool’s investments:

' Percent of .

Security Type . Moody’s S&P Carrying Value Assets
U.S. Agency bonds Azaa AAA 8§ 21,420,000 11.76%
U.S. Treasury bills Aaa  AAA 28,346,000 15.56%
U.S. Agency discount notes Pl A-1 112,399,000 61.70%
Money market funds Aaa AAA 109,000 0.06%
$ 162,274,000  89.08%

Unrated securities include repurchase agreements of $19,900,000. Acceptable collateral
for the repurchase agreements include U.S. Treasury and government agency securities, all of
which carry the highest credit rating.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an
investment in a single corporate issuer. ,

West Virginia statutes prohibit the government money market pool from investing more
than 5% of its assets in securities issued by a single private corporation or association. At
June 30, 2006, the pool did not have investments in any one private corporation or
association that represented more than 5% of assets.

Custodial credit risk

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the BTI will not be able to recover the value of an mvesfment
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

At June 30, 2006, the government money market pool held no securities that were subject
to custodial credit nsk Repurchase agresments are collateralized at 102% and the collateral
is held in the name of the BTI. Securities lending collateral that is reported in the BTI’s
aundited Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets is invested in the lending agent’s money market
fund in the BTI’s name.
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVINGFUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) |

Government Money Market Pool ( Continned)

_ Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. '

The overall weighted average maturity of the investments of the Government Money
Market Pool cannot exceed 60 days. Maximum maturity of individual securities cannot
exceed 397 days from date of purchase.

| ‘The following table provides information on the weighted average maturities for the
various asset types in the Government Money Market Pool:

Security Type | Carrying Value WAM (days)

U.S. Agency discount notes $ 112,399,000 39
U.S. Agency bonds ' 21,420,000 152
Repurchase agreements 19,900,000 3
U. 8. Treasury bills 28,346,000 42
Money market finds 109,000 1
Total assets $ 182,174,000 ' 49

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the
fair market value of an investment or a deposit. The government money market pool has no
securities that are subject to foreign currency risk.

Securities lending

At June 30, 2006, the fair value of securities on loan and the collateral held by the pools
of the BTI are as follows. The collateral received as cash is invested in the Mellon GSL
DBT II Collateral Fund. For securities loaned at June 30, 2006, the BTI has no credit misk
exposure to borrowers because the amount the BTI owes the borrowers exceeds the amounts
the borrower owe the BTI. There were no losses during the year resulting from borrower

* default, and there was no significant violations of legal or contractual provision.
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND
'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

" Government Monevy Market Pool ( Conﬁnued)

Securities lending (Con‘tinued)

Fair Value
of Securities Collateral
on Loan Held
Cash Liquidity Pool $ 292,400,158 $ 298,223,109
Government Money Market Pool 33,839,603 34,512,885
Total $ 326,239,761 $ 332,735,994

4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE

As of June 30, 2006 and 2005, loans receivable consisted of loans to municipalities and
public service districts for the construction of sewer facilities to comply with the Clean Water
Act. In addition, during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006 and 20035, loans were issued to
financial institutions for the non-point source program used to provide matching low interest.
loans for eligible recipients. Loans for municipalities and public service districts carmry
interest rates ranging from 0% to 3% and administrative fees ranging from 0% to 1%, not to
exceed an aggregate of 3%. Loans for the non-point source program carry interest rates from
0% to 2%, which are retained by the financial institution. Loans for municipalities and
public service districts are generally amortized over a period not to exceed forty years
starting one year after the project is completed, and loans from the non-point source program
are generally amortized over a period not to exceed ten years.

Loans with municipalities and public service districts are secured by the net revenues of
the respective system, and the municipalities and public service districts are required to
maintain a reserve account with the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. Loans to
recipients who issue bonds for repayment of the loan are required to deposit in the reserve
account an amount equal to not less than one-twelfth of one-tenth of the reserve requirement
or, if funded, an amount necessary to maintain the reserve account at the reserve requirement.
The reserve requirement is generally equal to one year’s principal and interest payments and
is required to be fully funded within ten years from issuance of the debt. Loans for the non-
point source program are made to approved financial institutions who in turn make loans to
eligible recipients based on approved projects. The financial institutions assume credit risk -
for the loans to the eligible recipients.
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

As of June 30, 2006 one loan with an original amount of $15,596 ,291 15 in ‘default
status with a reserve account balance of $82,827 and a required reserve account balance of
$173,293. Sixteen loans outstanding have cumulative deﬁc1enc1es in reserve fund balances

of $1,231,527.

Total cumulative loans authorized as of June 30, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

2006 B 2005
Loans Remaining Loans Remaining
Authorized Commitment Authorized Commitment

Completed projects ~ § 386,145,692 §$ - $355,545979 $ -
Projects in progress 113,163,580 21,426,151  123559.119 39,101,842

' $ 499,309,281  $21,426,151 $ 479,105,098 $39,101,842

Loans mature at various intervals through December 1, 2045. Payment schedules are
calculated based on the authorized loan amount. If a loan recipient does not utilize the
entire authorized amount, the payment schedule is recalculated to reflect the reduced
amount. The $21 million difference in the scheduled principal payments shown below and
loans receivable in the Statement of Net Assets represents the amount of authorized loans

not utilized at June 30, 2006.

The scheduled principal payments on all loans maturmg in subsequent years are as
follows at June 30, 2006:

2007 $ 19,352,073

2008 20,119,582

2009 20,635,710

2010 20,697,116

2011 20,624,334

Thereafier 297,129,090
398,557,905

Less current maturities 19,352,073
379,205,832

Less authorized, but not disbursed 21,426,151

$ 357,779,681




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

L.oans to Major Local Agencies

(Continued)

As of June 30, 2006 and 2005, the Fund has authorized loans to nineteen separate entities,

respecﬁvely, that exceed $7 million each. The outstanding balances of these loans represent

approximately 66% and 67% of the total loans receivable as of June 30, 2006 and 2005,

respectively, as follows:

Authorized

: June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005

Local Agency Loan Amount Balance Balance -
Beckley $ 20,039,000 $ 16,849,943 $ 13,407,316
Berkeley County PSSD 80,778,117 67,087,896 70,075,030
Bluefield 9,368,645 4,837,738 5,306,172
Charleston ‘ 21,750,880 17,387,322 18,161,332
Crab Orchard McArthur PSD 7,547,230 6,612,401 6,873,492
Dunbar 16,152,148 12,890,647 13,511,883
Follansbee 8,616,372 5,923,747 6,354,567
Huntington 6,955,844 5,014,916 5,371,414
Lubeck PSD 7,950,000 5,863,125 6,260,625
Morgantown 27,753,668 12,217,660 12,940,081
Nitro 7,542,302 5,353,453 5,674,471
North Beckley PSD 13,398,639 10,794,429 10,773,290
Pea Ridge 14,156,500 12,764,764 12,681,555
Salt Rock PSD 13,938,062 12,072,609 7,877,389
Scotts Run PSD 8,111,813 7,706,495 7,455,012
Shady Spring PSD 10,810,684 6,135,600 5,928,292
St. Albans 16,281,000 13,522,739 14,233,076
Union Williams 16,008,291 15,271,886 13,231,728
‘Wheeling 14,500,000 10,542,747 2,100,722

$ 321,659,195 § ‘248,850,11.7 $ 238,217,447

The anthorized loan amount includes both completed projects and projects in progress.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

5 - DUE TO OTHER AGENCIES

25

The Fund reimburses the West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection (the

- Department) for the direct and indirect costs incurred by the Fund, but paid by the
Department. In addition, the Fund has an operating agreement with the West Virginia Water
Development Authority for project analysis and administrative services. At June 30, 2006
and 2005, the Fund owed $15,921 and 857,153, respectively to the Department and $19,184

and $16,717, respectively, to the West Virginia Water Development Authority.

6 - CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS -

The Fund is perpetuated by other net revenues, grants, and contributions from the EPA under
the Clean Water Act and matching funds from the State of West Virginia. All funds drawn
are recorded as capital grants and contributions from the EPA and the State of West Virginia.
As of June 30, 2006, the cumulative amounts awarded to the Fund from the EPA and
required matching funds from the State of West Virginia were as follows:

Federal
Fiscal

Year

1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003

2004

2005

Total

EPA State
Grant Match
Amounts Amounts

$ 20,889,974 $ 4,177,994
31,353,287 6,270,657
9,661,835 1,932,367
30,288,852 6,057,770
29,962,449 5,992,490
37,792,161 7,558,432
No Award No Award
41,165,207 8,233,041
20,991,267 4,198.253
20,993,049 4,198,610
20,921,868 4,184,373
20,735,946 4,147,189
No Award No Award
20,859,280 4,171,893
20,821,900 4,174,379
37,435,400 7,500,678

$ 363,872,475 § 72,798,076




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued) '

6- CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS (Continued)

Subsequent to June 30, 2006, the Fund had applied for additional funding from the EPA
under the Clean Water Act in the amount of $13,650,912 and the respective matching funds
from the State of West Virginia of $2,730,182. As of the date of this report, the award

- notification had not been received. :

The following represents the amounts of the EPA grants and contributions received and
receivable and the applicable State amounts contributed to the fund as of June 30, 2006.

Total Capital
' Federal : Grants and

~ June 30 Capital State Capital =~ Contributions .
1992 $ 258,894 § 4,100,000 $ 4,358,894
1993 11,435,030 - 11,435,030
1994 6,550,679 3,873,001 10,423,680
1995 11,427,541 10,465,787 21,893,328
1996 ’ 22,336,689 5,992,490 28,329,179
1997 ’ 13,347,837 7,558,432 20,906,269
1998 ' 22,507,123 - - 22,507,123
1999 34,283,138 8,233,041 42,516,179
2000 47,718,753 8,396,863 56,115,616
2001 54,843,161 4,184,373 59,027,534
2002 ‘ 22,842,295 4,147,189 26,989,484
2003 28,135,192 4,156,416 32,291,608
2004 ' 32,799,962 - 132,799,962
2005 31,477,847 8,307,321 39,785,168
2006 20,241,737 - 3,367,686 23,609,423
Total $ 360,205,878 $ 72,782,599 § 432,988,477

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, arid
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to and illnesses of employees; and natural

disasters.



THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
'CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

7 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Fund has obtained coverage for job-related injuries of employees and health
coverage for its employees through its participation in the former West Virginia Workers’
Compensation Commission and. effective January 1, 2006, Brickstreet Mutual Insurance
Company (Brickstreet), a state government mandated private business entity, and the West
Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency (PEIA). In exchange for the payment of
premiums to PEIA and the Commission, the Fund has transferred its risk related to health
coverage for employees and job-related injuries of employees. -

The Fund participates in the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management to
obtain coverage for general liability, personal injury liability, professional liability, stop gap
liability, wrongful act liability, and comprehensive auto liability. Such coverage is offered in
exchange for an annual premium,.

'§ - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

All full-time Fund employees are eligible to participate in the State of West Virginia
Public Employees® Retirement System (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit public employee retirement system. The PERS is one of several plans administered
by the West Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement Board (CPRB) under the direction of
its Board of Trustees, which consists of the Governor, State Auditor, State Treasurer,
Secretary of the Department of Administration, and nine members appointed by the
Governor. CPRB prepares separately issued financial statements for each retirement system it
administers, which can be obtained from Consolidated Public Retirement Board, Building 5,
Room 1000, State Capitol Complex, Charleston, West Virginia 25305-0720.

Employees who 1etire at or after age sixty with five or more years of contributory service
or who retire at or after age fifty-five and have completed twenty-five years of credited
service are eligible for retirement benefits as established by State statute. Retirement benefits
are payable monthly for life, in the form of a straight-line annuity equal to two percent of the
employee’s final average salary, multiplied by the number of years of the employee’s
credited service at the time of retirement. o

Covered employees are required to contribute 4.5% of their salary to the PERS, and the
Fund is required to contribute 10.5% of covered employees’ salaries to the PERS. The
required employee confribution percentage has been established and changed from time to
time by action of the State Legislature. The employer contribution percentage has been



'THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
: (Continued) .

8 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continuedj

'esm‘blishe'd by PERS. The required contributions are not ac’cuaria]iy determined,; however,
actuarial valuations are performed to assist the Legislature in determining appropriate values.

The Fund and employee contributions, which equal the required contributions, for the three
years ended June 2006, 2005, and 2004 are as follows:

2006 " 2005 2004

Fund contributions (10.5%) | $ 97,967 8§ 98,588 $ 96,709
Employee contributions (4.5%) 44,497 42,908 42,105

Total contributions $ 142464 § 141,496 $ 138,814




THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
- CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

SCHEDULES OF INDIVIDUAL FUND ACTIVITY

SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS

O3 29

June 30, 2006
Administrative Combined
Assets: Fee Fund Loan Fund Fund Totals
Cash equivalents | $ 4,003,650 $ 76,501,707 $ 80,505,357
Receivables:
Due from U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency - 58,187 58,187
Due from West Virginia Department
of Environmental Protection 20,867 2,968 23,835
Interest on loans - 171,246 171,246
Administrative fees on loans 123,584 - 123,584
Loans receivable - 377,131,754. 377,131,754
Total assets | $ 4,148,101 $ 453,865,862 $ 458,013,963
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 28,946 1 28,947
Due to WV Department of
Environmental Protection - 15,921 15,921
Compensated absences 362,468 - 362,468
Total Liabilities 391,414 15,922 407,336
Restricted net assets $ 3,756,687 $ 453,849,940 $ 457,606,627

See Independent Auditors’ Report.



THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

SCHEDULES OF INDIVIDUAL FUND ACTIVITY

. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

; bR ]
ae

30

IN FUND NET ASSETS
Year Ended June 30, 2006
Administrative ' Combined
Fee Fund Loan Fund ‘Fund Totals
Operating revenues:
Interest income on loans $ - $ 1,954,190 $ 1,954,190
Administration fees on loans : 1,429,254 ' - 1,429,254
Total revenues 1,429,254 1,954,190 3,383,444
Operating expenses: .
Personnel costs 563,088 712,947 1,276,035
Other administrative costs 82,569 359,866 442,435
Total expenses 645,657 1,072,813 1,718,470
Operating income . 783,597 881,377 1,664,974
Non-operating revemue: '
Investment income - 135,179 2,897,746 3,032,925
Capital grants and contributions - 23,609,423 23,609,423
Net assets, beginning of year 2,837,911 426,461,394 429,299,305
Net assets, end of year § 3,756,687 $ 453,849,940 $ 457,606,627
SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended June 30, 2006
Administrative Combined
Fee Fund Loan Fund Fund Totals
Operating activities:
Cash payments for: _
Loans originated $ - $(37,879,655) $(37,879,655)
- Personnel expenses (526,125) (725,170) (1,251,295)
A dministrative expenses (20,234) (419,137) (439,371)
Cash receipts for: ‘ |
- Principal repayment - 17,619,844 17,619,844
Interest on loans revenue - 1,947,722 1,947,722
Administrative fee revenue 1,421,006 - 1,421,006
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities - $ 874,647 $ (19,456,396) $ (18,581,749)

See Independent Auditors® Report.
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

SCHEDULES OF INDIVIDUAL FUND AGI’IVI’TY

SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2006

Administrative Combined

| , Fee Fund Loan Fund Fund Totals
Capital and related financing activities: ~

Capital grants and contributions $ - $ 23,635,770 $ 23,635,770
Investing activities: _ :
Investing income 135,179 2,897,746 - 3,032,925
Netincrease in cash 1,009,826 7,077,120 8,086,946
Cash equivalents, begi_mﬁng of year 2,993,824 69,424,587 72,418,411
Cash equivalents, end of year | 4,003,650 | 76,501,707 3 80,505,357 .

Reconciliation of operating income to

cash used in operating activities:
Operating income , 783,597 881,377 $ 1,664,974
Adjustments to reconcile operating ‘

income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Increase in loans receivable - (20,259,811) (20,259,811)
Increase in other receivables (8,248) : (6,468) (14,716)
(Increase) decrease in due from WV

Department of Environmental

Protection 39,646 2,119 37,532
Decrease in due'to WV Department of - ‘

Environmental Protection - (41,232) (41,232)
Increase in compensated absences 33,072 - 33,072
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 26,580 (28,148) (1,568)

874,647 (19,456,396) (18,581,749)

See Indepehdenf Auditors” Report.
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.REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE
CAPITALIZATION GRANTS FOR CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND AND
- ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
PROGRAM-SPECIFIC AUDIT OPTION UNDER OMB CIRCULAR A-133 -

West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund
Charleston, West Virginia

Compliance

‘We have andited the compliance of West Virginia Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund

(the Fund) with the types of compliance requirements described in the US. Office of

Manragement and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to

the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2006. Compliance with the requirements of laws,

" regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of

the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Fund's compliance
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the andit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the EPA & Capitalization Grant
Jor Clean Water State Revolving Fund occurred. An aundit includes examining on a test basis,
evidence about the Fund's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opuuon Our audlt does not prov1de a legal determination of the Fund's
comphance with those requirements. :

In our opinion, the Fund complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to the Capitalization Grant for Clean Water State Revolving Fund for
the year ended June 30, 2006. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed an
instance of noncompliance with those requirements, which is required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and OMB Circular A-133 and is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2005-1.

300 CHASE TOWER | 707 VIRGINIA STREET, EAST | CHARLESTON, WV 25301 | PHONE: 304.345.8400 | FAX: 304345.8451



Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Fund is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Fund's
internal confrol over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on its Capitalization Grant for Clean Water State Revolving Fund in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on the intemnal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with the applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a
major federal program being andited may occur and not be ‘detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
that might be reportable conditions, and accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we considered to be material

weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information of the Fund's management, the State of West
Virginia, and the federal awarding agency and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Aot} forrrasts

September 15, 2006



THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

2006-1 SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING
Criteria

A1l subrecipients of the Fund with continuing compliance requirements are required to submit an
annual andit report. These andit reports must be reviewed by the Fund to provide reasonable
assurance that the subrecipients comply with federal requirements, that audits are performed on
federal funding supplied, and that corrective action is taken on all findings noted.

QQL@L@E

As of the date of our aundit report the fund had not received 37 (42%) of 88 subrecipient audit
reports that are required to be analyzed and reviewed by management of the Fund to comply with
federal reqmrements The following summarizes subrecipient andit reports not yet received by
year:

June 30, 2005 19 (51%) of 37 subrecipient andlt reports were not received by the
date of this audit report.
June 30, 2004 10 (40%) of 25 subrecipient audit reports were not received by the
date of this audit report
June 30, 2003 8 (31%) of 26 subrecipient audit reports were not received by the
date of this audit report.
Questioned Costs
None
Context

As of the date of our aundit report the Fund had disbursed the following amounts to the
subrecipients noted above:

June 30, 2005 The 19 subrecipients for the year that have not submitted audit
' reports represent $26,417,055 (44%) of total subrec1p1ent
disbursements of $60,431,460.

June 30, 2004 The 10 subrecipients for the year that have not submitted audit
reports represent $13,430,548 (30%) of total subrec1p1ent
disbursements of $44,351,637.



THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL REVOLVING FUND

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

2006-1 SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING (Continued)

Context (Continued

June 30, 2003 The 8 subrecipients for the year that have not submitted andit
reports represent $3,671,378 (12%) of total subrecipient
disbursements of $31,894,951.

Effect’

Subrecipient internal control matters or noncompliance may not be reported to the Fund in a
timely manner for. corrective action, follow-up, and resolution.

Although other monitoring procedures are in place, the Fund is unable to timely determine the
existence of material noncompliance or internal control issues with subrecipients that may be
identified through the audit process.

Canse

Subrecipient audits by independent certified public accountants and the Chief Inspector's
Division of the West Virginia State Auditor’s Office are not being performed or issued in a
timely manner. Therefore, the Fund is unable to complete desk review audits in a timely

manner.

Recommendation

The Fund should continue to monitor the status of subrecipient audit reports and provide
technical assistance to ensure that management and the governing body of the subrecipients
-understand the importance of filing timely audit reports.
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STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA DUE DATES (Forms 1-16) ;
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION- FINANCE DIVISION Draft Sept 1§, Final Oct. 16 2008
FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING SECTION

GAAP TRANSMITTAL FORM Audited Agency YWV Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund

THE FOLLOWIN G GAAP REPORTING FORMS ARE ATTACHED:

w3, iR Due 8/30
Verlfy me VWFIMS ba!ance sheet, revenues, anu
expenditures (expenses) reports.
[Manoatory ] 8727/2008] b
Due 8/30 [Mandatory | 7731/2008)
mmmma;ﬂmmww e g
FORM 1- BALANCE SHEET Optional * X
FORM 1A- STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS Optional X
FORM 2- STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES Optional X
FORM 2A- STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES Optional * X
FORM 3- STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
- AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS Optional * X
FORM 4~ STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS , Optional * X
Optional * X
Optional * X
L3 1K i
FORM 7- DEPOSITS DISCLOSU RE Mangatory 5/27/2006]
TRANS TREASURER - OUTSIDE BANK ACCOUNTS : .[Mandatory . X
FORM B- INVESTMENTS DISCLOSURE Mangatory 9/27/2006 -
FORM BA- DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS RECONCIUATION Mandatory 9/27/2008]
FORM 5 RECENABLES Optlonal * X
FORM 10- DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS- PG : Optional * X
FORM 10A- DUE TO OTHER FUNDS- PG Optional * X
AGENCY LISTING informational X
FORM 11- DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS-CU Optional * X
{Optional * ] ] X ]
~ FORM 13- CHGESIN LONG-TERM OBL!GATIDNS Optional * X
FORM 14- DEBT PAYMENT SCHEDULE Optional * X
|Mandatory | | X |
FORM 16 - PR!DR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS [Mandatory ] | ]

=NOTE: If sufficient information is displayed In the A udited financial statements, the optional forms may be omitted,
= Form changed from prior year

=* New form
Jennifer R, Paxton PLEASE SEND COMPLETED TRANSMITTALAND
PREPARED BY COMPLETED FORMS TO:
State of West Virginia
(304)926-0499 ext. 1565 Financial Accounting and Reporting Section
2101 Washington Street East
TELEPHONE NUMBER Bullding 17, 3rd Floor
’ Charieston, WV 25305
DATE Telephone Number (304) 5§58-4083

Fax Number (304) 556-4084

See independent Auditors' Report.
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STATE OF WEST VIRGIN A
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION - FINANCE DIVISION
FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING SECTION

GAAP REPORTING FORM - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS RECONCILIATION

Audited Agency WV Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and investments as reported in the financial statements
to the amounts disclosed in the footnote:

Deposits:
Cash and cash equivalents as reported on balance sheet _ $

80,505,357

Less: cash equivalents disciosed as investments

80,505,357

 Add: restricted assets disclosed as deposits

Other (describe)

Carrying amount of deposits as disclosed on Form 7 . ' $

Investments: :
Investments as reported on balance sheet ’ . $

" Add: restricted assets disclosed as investments

Add: cash equivalents disclosed as investments

80,505,357

Other (describe)

Reported amount of investments as disclosed on Form 8 $

80,505,357

See Independent Auditors' Report.




STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION - FINANCE DIVISION
FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING SECTION
GAAP REPORTING FORM - PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

Audited Agenéy WV Water Pollution Control Revoiving Fund

1) Fiscal Year : ' 2005
2) Finding Number : , 2005-1
Finding Name: Subrecfpient Monitorong
3) CFDA Number or Grant/Contract Number: ~ 66.468
4) The finding has been (check one): ' __ Resolved
. X Partially resolved
Not resolved

Please complete the following information:

Name of contact person: Ramona S. Dickson
Phone number of contact person: (304) 926-0499 ext. 1551
Anticipated completion date:
Resolution action taken to date: .
DEP provides annually a listing of all payments to subrecipients to facilitate audit scheduling. Fina:
ratio review has been expanded and tracking has been implemented to further assess subrecipient
financial status and to monitor for trends. Monthly desk reviews have been expanded in fv 2006 to
include subrecipient loan agreement compliance. Starting with audits reviewed in fiscal year 2006,
that discuss the findings of the desk reviews are being sent to CID, WDA, PSC, the independent
auditor , and the WV Water Poliution Control Revolving Fund program files.in addition to the grante

Future plans for resolution (include proposed dates): The Department of Environmental
Protection will work with other agencies to ensure timely audit reports. Audits will continue to be
emphasized at loan closings and during inspections. Desk reviews continue monthly.

See Independent Auditors' Report.




